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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of the companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars give in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Millennium Pacific Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

LISTING

On 18 July 2014, the Company was successfully listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”). The Listing has laid a
foundation for the Group’s continuous development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2016 was a year of fast changing and difficulties. During the year, the Group
recorded a net loss. Such loss was mainly because (i) the largest customer of
the Group has ceased to place order for GPS personal navigation devices
from the Group since June 2015; (i) the unsatisfactory sales of the Group’s
consumer electronic products, such as fitness bracelet and mobile internet
devices; (jii) a significant amount of allowance for inventories has been made
during the year ended 31 December 2016 as a result of the drop in market
needs of its consumer electronic products; and (iv) the operation of internet
trading platform was unsatisfactory. All the above reasons resulted in
significant net loss of the Group.

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s performance,
financial position and other information in the year 2016 with shareholders in
the following section of management discussion and analysis.

PROSPECTS

Apart from our commitment to the development of our principal business, we
will actively make progress to generate growth and strive for potential and new
business opportunities. The Group is actively developing electronic products
market, through various channels, and on 3 February 2017, the Company
entered into the memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with the target
company in respect of the possible acquisition by the Company of interest in a
company established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability on
8 August 2011 (the “Possible Acquisition”). The Target Company is
principally engaged in research, development, design, manufacture and sales
of weak alkaline waste-free water purification machine. The Company believes
that the Possible Acquisition, if materializes, will enable the Company to
complement on the business of research, development, manufacturing and
trading of electronic devices. The Company will make further announcement(s)
as and when appropriate and comply with all other applicable requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules. Our Group will keep the shareholders abreast of
the latest development of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group remains committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. All board committees have effectively supported the Board in
carrying out its responsibilities. By conducting its business under good
corporate governance, the Group’s and shareholders’ long term interests will
be maximized.
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Chairman’s Statement
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest thanks to the
management and our staff for their significant contributions. | would like to
expend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders and investors for their
endless support. With the solid business base and the effort of all staff, the
Group will endeavor to open a new chapter in the future.

Tang Wai Ting, Samson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WD

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products, such as fitness
bracelets, GPS personal navigation devices, mobile internet devices and TV
set-top boxes. The Group provides one-stop services to our customers by
offering design, prototyping/sampling, manufacturing, assembling and
packaging of their products. The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$51.7 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 23.0% from approximately HK$67.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015. In 2016, the global economic environment was
extremely volatile, with the personal electronics market taking the brunt.
Several leading brands in the market suffered from declined performance, and
the Group was also affected in terms of the sales of its electronic devices.
Therefore, we set aside a significant amount of allowance for the inventory
during the year. In addition, as operation of its online transaction platform was
not as good as expected and failed to improve sales revenue by leveraging on
the Big Data of the online platform and Business Intelligence Technology, the
Group suspended relevant expansion efforts and expanded its product
diversity by every possible means to supply the existing trade business while
keeping an eye on potential acquisition targets, in order for the Group to
realise profit as soon as possible.

In an attempt to broaden our product category and sales channel, in July
2016, the Group launched the internet trading platform, namely “CQP Mall”,
which is an online sales and advertisement platform. The internet trading
platform business was carried out under our subsidiaries, namely Millennium
Pacific Information Technology Limited (“MPIT”), Truvisio Limited (“Truvisio”)
and Millennium Pacific Information Technology (Shenzhen) Limited
(“MPITSZ”). After the launch, the performance of the internet trading platform
was unsatisfactory. In December 2016, the Group has ended the internet
trading platform business by disposing of the above subsidiaries. The net loss
of the internet trading platform until the date of disposal was approximately
HK$9.6 million.

The following table sets forth the breakdowns of the turnover of the Group for
each of the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016:

BmE

AEBETZNENE  RERBEHRBETER P2y
FIR  GPSEAEMRE THERKBERBERIER - K
KEBBRIUR  REBELS HHBELE B8 ERER
BEEDMATFRE-UARYE - ARERE—T—RF
ToAZT—BIEFEZEEBRNSITESEEL  BE
ECE-AFT A=+ -RIEFEZN6T1AEEBITR
D#I23.0% o —FE—ANFREBERFENAEE - AAET
HERERBEEAT BmiS LAEATIERBEMENERR
BN REENEFEREETTRE  RMBEAFELF
E‘T’Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁéﬁ o BN ARAREMEMBR ST AEE
RIS REFBEBRB LT AN RBIBEREEE
(I T%ﬂiﬁ%uﬁlﬁﬁ F AEED R AR RITE L EEEE
BFEREBRAHEREN  UZERENESZEBRTRKEA
EHBEENEBETHE  BROAEHEFRERAE -

ARPAERERREERE  RZZ—XRFLA  A£E%E
HEBEISZFAHEEE] e EARLEERESTF
B BMAR ST A EKTIHEEK MM E 2 7 Milennium
Pacific Information Technology Limited ([MPIT]) « 4% Al
BRAG(ERAIH REBRXEFEISREOR) AR
ARI((EBRRFEGERECRYN ) BEHET - #HHE -
EBRARSGFEEERREE - RZE—XRF+=A ' £%
EEBNE ENMBARKLETERNERS Ta%l - 52
PERH  BMARS TAERFENAEI6EESTT

TREJAEEREBEE_Z-—HAFR-_ZT-—R"F+-H
:+*E¢¢E%¢Z%¥%EEH%BE :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2016 2015
—7NiE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Sales of manufactured products SHE 2 E M 28,721 56,150
Sales on trading of electronic products, EfEM BEEREMBESZHE
accessories and raw materials 23,006 10,948
51,727 67,098
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBHNWR DM

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The majority of the Group’s cost of sales was raw material costs. The Group’s
cost of sales dropped by 24.5% to approximately HK$46.1 million between
the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2016. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 9.0% for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately 10.8% for the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase in
gross profit margin was mainly due to stringent cost control measure
implemented during the year ended 31 December 2016. The gross profit
dropped slightly from approximately HK$6.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately HK$5.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2016. The decrease in gross profit was in line with the decrease in
turnover of the Group mainly because (i) the largest customer of the Group
has ceased to place order for GPS personal navigation devices from the
Group due to the change of its product line; and (i) the sales of the Group’s
consumer electronic products, such as fitness bracelets and mobile internet
devices were unsatisfactory.

Expenses

Staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately HK$18.5
million (2015: approximately HK$14.5 million), representing an increase of
approximately HK$4 million as compared with the last year, which was mainly
due to increase in head count in Hong Kong during the period.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$51.4 million (2015: approximately HK$20.9 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$30.5 million as compared with
the last corresponding period, mainly due to the increase in operating lease
charges on premises in respect of offices in Hong Kong and PRC, the
allowance for inventories, staff costs and foreign exchange loss. A significant
amount of allowance for inventories of approximately HK$15.8 million (2015:
approximately HK$2.8 million) has been made during the year ended 31
December 2016 as a result of the drop in market needs of its consumer
electronic products.

Taxes

The income tax expense comprised Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) for the year. The income tax expense for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately HK$1,000 (2015:
approximately HK$19,000).

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) based on the
assessable profits for the year. On 26 December 2014, Central Pacific Int
Technology Limited (“CPIT”), a Company’s PRC subsidiary, was granted
status of High and New Technology Enterprise and entitled to preferential EIT
rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016 provided that CPIT
continues engaging in activities which meet the criteria of being a High and
New Technology Enterprise pursuant to No. 28 of the EIT Law of the PRC
(“EIT Law”) and No. 93 of the Regulation on the Implementation of the EIT
Law promulgated by the State Council of the PRC. The tax rate applicable to
the Group’s other PRC subsidiaries were 25% (2015: 25%) during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WD

Loss for the Year

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$44.1 million during the
year ended 31 December 2016, as compared with a net loss of approximately
HK$17.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The loss incurred was
mainly because (i) the largest customer of the Group has ceased to place
order for GPS personal navigation devices from the Group due to the change
of its product line; (i) the sales of the Group’s consumer electronic products,
such as fitness bracelets and mobile internet devices were unsatisfactory; (i) a
significant amount of allowance for inventories of approximately HK$15.8
million (2015: approximately HK$2.8 million) has been made during the year
ended 31 December 2016 as a result of the drop in market needs of its
consumer electronic products; and (iv) the operation of internet trading
platform was unsatisfactory. All the above reasons resulted in significant net
loss of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Historically, the Group has funded its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through operating cash flows, bank borrowings and funds from the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Group
requires cash primarily for working capital needs. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group had bank and cash balances of approximately HK$7.2 million (31
December 2015: approximately HK$33.0 million). The Board kept monitoring
the cash level of the Group and would consider different ways of financing in
order to ensure the sufficiency of cash.

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$44.1 million and net cash outflow from operating activities
of approximately HK$28.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, and
had decrease in net current assets by approximately HK$35.2 million with net
amount due to a director of approximately HK$6.5 million as at 31 December
2016. These conditions to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Taking into account the Group’s future development needs, the Company and
a placing agent (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement (the
“Placing Agreement”) on 16 March 2017, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to appoint the Placing Agent to, on a best effort basis, procure placees
to subscribe for the 4.0% coupon unlisted bonds with a term of 12 months, to
be issued in tranches by the Company in an aggregate principal amount up to
HK$30,000,000 (the “Bonds”). Details of Placing Agreement have been
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 20 March 2017. Up to
the date of this announcement, the placing of Bonds has yet been completed.

Proceeds from bond issuance will be used for potential acquisitions or working
capital to strengthen the trading business of the Group.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} &5 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBHNWR DM

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2016, we had bank overdraft of approximately HK$50,000
(31 December 2015: nil) and finance lease payables of approximately
HK$41,000 (31 December 2015: HK$0.2 million). Due to the drop of total
equity, the gearing ratio increased from approximately 0.4% as at 31
December 2015 to approximately 1.5% as at 31 December 2016.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For the
avoidance of doubt, total debt includes bank borrowing and finance lease
obligations.

OPERATION REVIEW

Outlook

In 2016, the global economic environment was extremely volatile, with the
personal electronics market taking the brunt. Several leading brands in the
market suffered from declined performance, and the Group was also affected
in terms of the sales of its electronic devices. Therefore, we set aside a
significant amount of allowance for inventory during the year. In addition, as
operation of its online transaction platform was not as good as expected and
failed to improve sales revenue. Both led to the increase in the net loss for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

According to International Data Corporation (“IDC”), an international provider
of market data for the information technology, telecommunications and
consumer technology markets, global tablet shipment declined for the first
time in the last quarter of 2014 since 2010. The global tablet shipments have
been declining since then with global tablet shipments dropping further by
15.6% in 2016 to 174.8 million units compared to 2015, marking the second
straight year of declining shipments. The global tablet market has become
even more difficult for small manufacturers as the market share of small
manufacturers was shrinking, with the aggregate market share of all tablet
manufacturers other than top 5 manufacturers dropping from 37.4% in the
last quarter of 2014 to 19.8% in the last quarter of 2016. The small
manufacturers are competing for the smaller share in a shrinking market.

Source: IDC Worldwide Quarterly Tablet Tracker, February 1, 2016 and February 2,
2017

With the competitive market condition, the Group has sought to expand its

product portfolio. In 2016, the Group has launched its health tracking
products, Skipping Rope and Bike Meter, under its existing principal business.
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In July 2015, our Group launched its new product fithess bracelet. Our fitness
bracelets were sold at various platforms such as our own website, a third
party online platform and various retail stores. We sold 19,000 units of fitness
bracelets in 2016 (2015: 576 units), generating revenue of approximately
HK$3.4 million in 2016 (2015: approximately HK$0.1 million).

In an attempt to broaden our product category and sales channel, in July
2016, the Group launched the internet trading platform, namely “CQP Mall”,
which is an online sales and advertisement platform. The internet trading
platform business was carried out under our subsidiaries, MPIT, Truvisio and
MPITSZ. After the launch, the performance of the internet trading platform was
unsatisfactory. In December 2016, the Group has ended the internet trading
platform business by disposing of the above subsidiaries. The net loss of the
internet trading platform until the date of disposal was approximately HK$9.6
million.

Looking forward, the Group will remain committed to the development of our
trading business. Apart from enhancing the research and development
function and expanding its product functionality, the Group is actively
developing electronic products market, through various channels and
continues to seek new investment opportunities with growth potential. No
target has been confirmed and no decision of such investment has been made
by the Board. The Company will publish announcement on these matters (if
any) in due course.

Litigation

On 27 July 2016, the Company received a writ of summons filed by Kim,
Sungho as the plaintiff (“Plaintiff’) against (i) CPIT Investments Limited, which
is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”),
an executive director and the chairman of the Company, and 1% by Ms. Chan
Kai Hei (“Mrs. Tang”), a director of Central Pacific International Group Limited
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the spouse
of Mr. Tang); (i) Mr. Tang; (i) Mrs. Tang; (iv) Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (an
executive director and the vice-chairman of the Company); (v) Mr. Yang Wu;
and (vi) the Company as the defendants under an action number HCA
1935/2016 (“First Proceeding”) in the High Court of Hong Kong (“Court”)
regarding certain dealings in the shares of the Company. On 12 August 2016,
the Company received a writ of summons filed by Lim Hang Young as the
plaintiff against (i) World Link CPA Limited (the auditor of the Company)
(“Auditor”); (i) Mr. Tang; (i) Mr. Chan Kwon Chi Vicky (a director of CPIT
Investments Limited); (iv) CPIT Investments Limited; and (v) the Company as
the defendants under an action number HCA 2041/2016 (“Second
Proceeding”) in the Court regarding, inter alia, certain accounting issues. The
Company has obtained orders from the Court on 18 January 2017 to dismiss
the First Proceeding and the Second Proceeding against the Company with
costs of the proceedings to be paid by Kim, Sungho and Lim Hang Young
respectively. The Company is therefore no longer a party in these actions.
Details of the above legal proceedings are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 27 July 2016, 12 August 2016 and 3 February 2017.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 66 employees. The
Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$18.5 million (2015: approximately HK$14.5 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market practice
and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification and experience
of individual employee. The Group recognises the importance of a good
relationship with its employees. The remuneration payable to its employees
includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits and incentives include
trainings and share options.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s employees have participated in the mandatory
provident fund schemes prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In the PRC, the
Group’s employees have participated in the basic pension insurance, basic
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational injury insurance,
maternity insurance prescribed by the Social Insurance Law of the PRC ( {#
#= AR HEMBEHEREE) ), and housing provident fund prescribed by the
Regulations on the Administration of Housing Fund ( {({EEATE & E IR IEH]) ).
All PRC-based employees have the right to participate in the social insurance
and housing provident fund schemes.

Capital expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$2.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
approximately HK$0.8 million).

Capital commitments
The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company does not have significant exposure on foreign currency risk.

The functional currencies of the Group’s entities are principally denominated in
HK$ and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
respective Group entities such as United States dollars (‘US$”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives agreement and did not commit to

any financial instruments to hedge against its foreign exchange exposure
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

In December 2016, the Group disposed of three subsidiaries, MPIT, Truvisio
and MPITSZ, to an independent third party. Before the disposals, MPIT and
MPITSZ assisted the Group’s internet trading platform. Truvisio assisted the
Group’s research and development in consumer electronic products. The
management believes that such disposals will help the Group to centralise
resources management and improve original trading business so that the
Group is able to realise profit as soon as possible.

Save for the above, there were neither significant investments held as at 31
December 2016 nor material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries made
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Save for the possible acquisition of
a company established in the PRC (the “Possible Acquisition”), details of
which are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 February
2017, there is no plan for material investments or capital assets as at the date
of this announcement.

Charges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no pledged deposits (2015: HK$NIl).
The Group had a motor vehicle with carrying amount of HK$40,000 (2015:
HK$198,000) acquired under finance leases. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying value of finance leases payables amounted to approximately
HK$41,000 (2015: approximately HK$0.2 million).

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the Prospectus for
the period from 21 June 2014, being the latest practicable date as defined in
the Prospectus (‘LPD”), to 31 December 2016 (the “Review Period”) with
the Group’s actual business progress for the Review Period is set out as
follows:

Business Objective for the Review Period
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Actual Business Progress up to 31 December 2016
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Expanding the production capacity and scale

BEAREREREE

- determine the specification of additional surface mount technology (the
“SMT") production facilities
R R E BB ([SMT ) 8iE R bt iR A%

— acquire and install additional SMT production facilities
HBE R REEIN SMT EE R
— expand the Group’s operation with the additional SMT production facilities

LAFTIZH) SMT A ERIER AN EE L E
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Considering production and sales performance of its
production facilities, the Group will adjust the use of
proceeds to generate more effective returns for the
Group. For more information, please refer to “Use of
Proceeds from the Listing” on page 15.
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Business Objective for the Review Period
EIESAEXEEE

Actual Business Progress up to 31 December 2016
BE_Z-—AE+ZA=1+—BZ2EREKER

Strengthening the research and development capabilities

INIB I EED

— formulate an research and development improvement plan and set out the
detailed steps, measures and scope of engineering improvement
programme

HIFERT B BCERT R - WHPHALTR - TR RUCE T2 Bl EE

— recruit six employees with engineering expertise in the PRC
EPEBEARETIREEAS

— acquire equipment to enhance the operating system for both GPS personal
navigation devices and mobile internet devices
BRI R GPS A S BERITHEREENRIERS

— acquire equipment to enhance the audio/visual effect of mobile internet
devices
BESERRATDEPEENSIE RARER

— acquire equipment to raise the energy consumption efficiency of the
products
BERXHARSERMEERERERE

— provide support to the Group s existing research and development function

RESE T ARER A EBE

Improving the information technology system
AREABBEFZL
— acquire a new Enterprise Resource Planning (‘ERP”) system

BEHRCEERAE ((ERP)) R

— recruit six personnel with expertise in information technology for the
operation and maintenance of the new ERP system
BEARAMMREEABSRIEREEN ERP 2R

— integrate the ERP system into the Group’s operation

#% ERP R IAARKELERS
— acquire computers and servers to support the new ERP system and to
upgrade the new ERP system

BB B R ARES ST ERP 2T T AR ERP R

The Group has formulated a research and development
improvement plan which sets out the detailed steps,
measures and scope of engineering improvement
programme

REBDHIEHESCESE - WERIFALR - i
Ko TiRat 82 6l

The Group has employed six engineers in the PRC
REBERFBEERANZIEM

The Group has acquired equipment to enhance the
operating system

REBEDBERBIAMRTHERRR

The Group has cooperated with third party for
supporting our existing research and development

AEBBHAE=TAE  IFREME

The Group is reviewing the timeframe for acquiring a
new ERP system. During the Review Period, the Group
has upgraded the existing ERP system on a small scale
AEBEAFHBANESHFERP ZMARER - K E
FREAR - AEB B HIRE ERP ZAEIT/ NAEAR

The Group has employed six programmers

AEBEBAREEARREE

The Group has integrated existing ERP system into the
Group’s operation

REBBEEIRE ERP Rt AKE 2 EES

The Group has acquired the equipment to support the
ERP system and upgraded the existing ERP system on
a small scale

REBEEEREALIE ERP ZSUW B HIRA ERP
RECEIT NRE TR
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company under
the placing as set out in the Prospectus were approximately HK$30.3 million,
which was different from the estimated net proceeds of approximately
HK$34.8 million (estimated on the assumption that the placing price would be
the mid-point of the stated range as stated in the Prospectus). The Group
adjusted the use of proceeds in the same manner and in the same proportion
as shown in the Prospectus, and approximately HK$12.4 million, HK$8.0
million, HK$3.3 million, HK$3.6 million and HK$3.0 million were adjusted for (i)
repayment of bank borrowings; (ii) expanding the production capacity and
scale through the acquisition of additional SMT production facilities; (iii)
strengthening and expanding the research and development team; (iv)
improving the information technology system; and (v) working capital
respectively. During the Review Period, the Group has applied the net
proceeds as follows:

THABREARE

MANBRFIRFTH - BRI E BITARRIFROGHIEE
BRFFEAKNS03F BB - BIGFTASRIEFRHAI34.88
BB T (REEEABRERMIETHENPIHNREER
e EE) RE - AEEE RBIRERATI S = Kl
BESFIBAR 091248 8% - 80E&8AL - 838S
B 36EBETKIOABETSRANTEIENRAR
S8 ()ERRITER () B BKEREINSMT RUER G A
FERE R ARAE ¢ (i) hoe R IBF B BB - (W AR E AR K
G RVWEELS NEEBHK  ANEECEABREF
BAETIIAR

Adjusted use of
proceeds in the
same manner
and proportion

as stated in
Prospectus Actual usage
(note)
HBIRER AT
FRE L F AR
FERIERZ ERAR
(FtEE)
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEET
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEBITER 12.4 12.4
Marketing and brand promotion “Archon” and i migHEE [ Archon] K&
“Millennium Pacific” (note) [FEBAFFE (M) 2.0 1.0
Development of trading business and/or BRESEB R A TR (i 5E)
potential acquisition(s) (note) 6.0 1.0
Strengthening and expanding the research hn5e Kz 4 75 i 3% B X
and development team 3.3 3.3
Improving the information technology system FHREMEHE RS 3.6 3.6
Working capital EEES 3 3
30.3 24.3

Note: On 20 March 2017 the Board resolved to change and ratify any past
change in the proposed use of net proceeds of HK$8.0 million originally
allocated for expanding the production capacity and scale through the
acquisition of additional SMT production facilities to the purposes
indicated above. For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 20 March 2017. Up to the date of this report,
out of HK$8.0 million the Group has temporarily utilised HK$5.4 million
as working capital to leverage on its principal business.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson, aged 54, is one of the co-founders of the
Group, an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Group. He is also a member of the Compliance
Committee. He is the spouse of Mrs. Tang. He is responsible for formulating
the corporate strategies and overseeing the overall business of the Group. Mr.
Tang has over 15 years of experience in selling consumer electronic devices
and over 20 years of experience in the research and development of consumer
electronic devices.

Mr. Tang received a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical and Electronics
Engineering from the University of Bradford, United Kingdom, in July 1984. He
worked in the research and development department of two companies in
United Kingdom, namely, Racal Electronics Group Plc Ltd. from 1984 to 1988
and AFE Electronics Group Ltd. from 1988 to 1992. The businesses of these
companies were manufacture of products in relation to aviation, marine and
electric equipment and industrial control products respectively.

In 1997, Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang jointly incorporated a company in United
Kingdom, namely Central Pacific International Trading Limited (formerly known
as Pan Express Foods Limited), to engage in the trading of computer
accessories. In light of the growing demand for GPS personal navigation
devices and leveraged on the experience and connections gained in the
trading business, Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang together established CPE (one of
our subsidiaries) with the base situated in the PRC in 2004 to focus on the
development and sale of GPS personal navigation devices. The operation of
Central Pacific International Trading Limited then ceased and it was de-
registered in 2006.

Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael, aged 44, is an executive Director and the vice
chairman of the Board. Mr. Kor has over 10 years of experience in project
investment and corporation management. He is an investor engaged in
property and securities investment. Mr. Kor is currently the president of an
investment holding company which operates a financial service group in the
Asia Pacific region.
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Mr. Mak Hing Keung Thomas, aged 54, is an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Mak holds a Bachelor degree of Commerce from Queen’s
University, Canada. Mr. Mak is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada, a member of Hong Kong Business Accountants
Association and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Mak has over 25 years of corporate finance and accounting
experience in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Mak is currently also the chief
financial officer of Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (stock code: 1039).
He was the chief operations officer of HF Financial Group (China) Limited. Prior
to HF Financial Group (China) Limited, Mr. Mak was the chief financial officer
and company secretary in various Main Board listed and private companies.
Mr. Mak worked for an investment bank and Listing Division of the Stock
Exchange respectively. Mr. Mak has also worked for an international
accounting firm in Hong Kong, Singapore and Canada for over seven years.
Mr. Mak was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of Huge
China Holdings Limited (stock code: 428) on 1 January 2015 and was re-
designated to a non-executive Director on 1 July 2015. He is also a member
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of Huge China Holdings
Limited. Mr. Mak is an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
audit committee and a member of remuneration committee of Tao Heung
Holdings Limited (stock code: 573). Mr. Mak is also the independent non-
executive director, the chairman of audit committee and member of
remuneration committee of China Greenfresh Group Co. Ltd (stock code:
6183).

Mr. Liu Liang, aged 35, is an executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Guizhou University of Commerce (formerly Commercial
College of Guizhou) in 2000, majoring in Finance and Securities Investment.
Mr. Liu has held various business management positions in fund management,
import and export trading since 2000. Mr. Liu has extensive working
experience in management and leadership. Mr. Liu is currently Director of
Shenzhen Honghe Tianyu Assets Company Limited.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} &5 2016

BFEBEE 545 ARAMTEF - HEARFHNEX
Queen’s University W 2+ 84 - BEEBNEREFTE
FTRMIABSEE  BARASHIHESEEREASHAAE
BEREE - BAEHEBSFNEBLEBIICERERS
ATKE c BEAERINEAESMIBEEARAR(BHAR
5% 1089 MEFIHE -LX4CEEESeRMER (P
BEDERARNEREER -RIMAEESRER (RE) A
RARA - BEECTZHERETRLARRNE FYB
B RATME - A B ABRERN —HIRERIT R
LR EAATER—MEBEERS - FINE RIS AER
HER e TR T - EAER S hFESTAE
EPEZERARAR (BRMHAS : 428) B IERTEER
RZE—AF+A—BERATRIENTES - BINEEES
FEIERERATNEZEZEGRFMNEEGKE - BE4E
RAREERAR AR (BRMDHNRE : 573) KB L IEHTE
T ERZEGEIRRTNEEGHKE - BEENAFEK
BEEARAF(BRMHASE : 6183) KB FHITES - &
BREEGFRFEFMEEGKE -

BImEE 365 ARFHTES - RN _TTTFEX
RENASE (RIEEMNE XS FENSR)  TEERER
FREEX - AL _TTRFUREESEE - £HO
BONAIEESHEEBERRS - IR BRALENEER
KR ARERR/RICAREECEEEEERAR
£

17



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony, aged 47, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree with honors in Finance and
Accounting from University of Salford, United Kingdom and a degree in
Executive Master of Business Administration from Richard Ivey School of
Business, The University of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tse is a member of
each of lllinois Certified Public Accountants Society, American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Accountants Exchange, Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and Hong Kong Securities Professionals
Association. Mr. Tse is also an associate member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tse has over 18 years of experience in
corporate finance and accounting and has worked for several international
accounting firms, investment banks and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Tse is currently a managing director of corporate finance
department in Essence Corporate Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and acts as
its principal under the sponsor regime. Mr. Tse was a non-executive director
of China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8132) from
10 January 2014 to 30 April 2015. Mr. Tse is currently an independent non-
executive director of Yunbo Digital Synergy Group Limited (Stock Code: 8050).
Mr. Tse is a responsible officer licensed under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”) to carry on
Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activities.

Mr. Au Hoi Fung, aged 39, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Au graduated from the Department of Accounting of China Television
Broadcasting University (7 Bl &% & # A 22) in 1998. He has over 17 years of
experience in accounting, financial management and internal control
management and he had served a number of management positions in a
number of listed companies from 2006 to 2016. Mr. Au served as a Finance
manager of Novo Group Limited (Stock code: 1048) and China Sandi Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 910) in 2015 and 2016 respectively.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chan Sze Man, aged 35, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms.
Chan is a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Ms. Chan has been a member of the HKICPA
since February 2007 and has over 9 years of experience in accounting and
auditing for Hong Kong listed companies and private companies. Ms. Chan
received a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (majoring in
Accountancy) from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
November 2003. Ms. Chan has been serving as the chief financial officer and
the company secretary of Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 698),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since January
2011. Between February 2012 and November 2013, Ms. Chan served as an
independent non-executive director of Seamless Green China (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 8150), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Ms. Chan has also been serving as an independent non-executive director of
Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited (stock code: 8226), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange from October 2012 to April 2015.
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In March 2012, two writs of summons were issued against Seamless Green
China (Holdings) Limited (“Seamless Green”) and its directors including Ms.
Chan. The writs were issued against Ms. Chan solely because she was one of
the directors of Seamless Green and none of the claims stated in the writs
was made against Ms. Chan personally. Both plaintiffs (the “Plaintiffs”) were
the shareholders of Seamless Green. The legal representative of both claims
confirmed that the writs will be obsolete in due course. We are advised by
Seamless Green’s legal representative that the plaintiffs in both claims have
not taken further step after the close of the pleadings. Ms. Chan resigned her
position as director of Seamless Green on 1 November 2013.

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Lee is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Compliance Committee.
Mr. Lee has been a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since September 1988 and he received a Professional Diploma
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1985
and a Master Degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 1995. Mr. Lee has
extensive experience in providing corporate and financial advisory services.
From March 1989 to October 1997, Mr. Lee worked in various senior positions
with @ number of companies in different industries. Since October 1997, Mr.
Lee has been engaging in several corporate and financial advisory roles such
as acted as the vice-manager for South China Bluesky Aviation Oil Co. Ltd.,
financial controller for Pearl Glorious Investment Ltd., and in June 20083, Mr.
Lee acted as a financial controller for China Gas Holdings Limited (stock code:
384), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From
September 2007 to June 2011, Mr. Lee worked in a private company, which
is principally engaged in providing finance advisory services to corporate
clients. Mr. Lee who acts as a consultant, is mainly responsible for providing
advice and day-to-day management of the company. From October 2011 to
present, Mr. Lee has been working in a private company as a corporate
advisor who is mainly responsible for providing advice to the company and its
associates.
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Mr. Ng Ka Chung, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Ng is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Compliance Committee. Mr.
Ng has been admitted as a barrister in Hong Kong in October 1993 and had
served as a court prosecutor and senior court prosecutor at the Legal
Department (now known as the Department of Justice) of the Hong Kong
government. He is currently a practicing barrister with over 20 years of
experience in the legal field. Mr. Ng received a Bachelor’'s Degree in Science
from the University of Alberta (Canada), in December 1980. He is a Graduate
of Common Profession of Examination in Laws from The HKU School of
Professional and Continuing Education, in May 1992, and the Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The University of Hong Kong in July 1993. Mr.
Ng has been serving as an independent non-executive director of China Ol
Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Fairson Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 8132), a company listed on GEM, since August 2013.
Mr. Ng also served as an independent non-executive director of China Billion
Resources Limited (formerly known as Global Green Tech Group Limited)
(stock code: 274), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from 7 January 2011 to 27 January 2011, and an independent
non-executive director of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Cash Retail Management Group Limited and Oriental
Ginza Holdings Limited) (stock code: 996), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from 28 February 2006 to 16 December 2013.

Ms. Eugenia Yang, aged 40, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms.
Yang is the chairlady of the Audit Committee and the Compliance Committee
and a member of both the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Ms. Yang is a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. She has been a
member of the HKICPA since July 2005, a member of CPA Australia since
September 2003 and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales (ICAEW) since May 2016. Ms. Yang received a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce, Postgraduate Diploma in Finance and a Master’s
Degree in Commerce (majoring in Finance) from The University of Melbourne,
Australia, in March 1998, April 1999 and September 2000 respectively, and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from Monash University, Australia, in March 2003.
From August 2005 to May 2006, Ms. Yang was an independent non-executive
director of Nority International Group Limited (currently known as Wai Chun
Mining Industry Group Co. Ltd.) (stock code: 660), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yang has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of China Oil Gangran Energy Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Fairson Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8132), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange since August 2013.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Yau Chuen, Louis, aged 40, is the chief financial officer of the
Group. Mr. Lau graduated from City University of Hong Kong and is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lau has around 17
years of financial reporting, audit and compliance experiences gained from
international CPA firms and listed companies. Mr. Lau was formerly an
executive director and financial controller of Artini China Co. Ltd. (stock code:
789) from May 2010 to July 2011. Mr. Lau has been serving as company
secretary of China Innovative Finance Group Limited (stock code: 412), a
company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho, aged 35, is the company secretary of the Group. Mr.
Chou is a member of the compliance committee. Mr. Chou has over 10 years
of experience in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chou
served at PricewaterhouseCoopers from January 2006 to December 2010.
From January 2011 to March 2012, Mr. Chou worked as the head of
corporate services of ASR Holdings Limited (“ASR”) and was responsible for
overseeing the application of ASR for listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. ASR was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in January 2012 (stock code: 1803).

Mr. Chou received a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong

Polytechnic University in 2003. Mr. Chou is a member of both the HKICPA and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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FOREWORD

The Group primarily adopts the principles and basis of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set
out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, with an aim
to establish a sound environment, social and governance structure.

This report comprises the review of environment, social and governance
areas, which sets out the Company and its major subsidiaries’ policies and
practices in respect of three environmental aspects and eight social aspects in
accordance with ESG Reporting Guide for the year from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2016 (the “Year 2016”). This report is designed to allow the
Company’s stakeholders, such as shareholders, investors, customers,
suppliers, employees, creditors, regulators and the general public to have
comprehensive understanding of the long-term sustainability information of the
Group. The Group seeks to balance the views and interests of these
stakeholders through constructive conversation with a view to setting the
course for long term prosperity. The Board of directors is responsible for
evaluating and determining the environmental, social and governance risks of
the Group, and ensuring that relevant risk management and internal control
systems are in place and operate effectively.

The Group is principally engaged in research and development, manufacturing
and sale of consumer electronic products, such as fitness bracelets, GPS
personal navigation devices, mobile internet devices and TV set-top boxes. In
addition, the Group launched an internet trading platform, namely CQP Mall in
July 2016 which creates refreshing online shopping experiences for its
customers.

CPIT, a limited company established in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company is principally engaged in research, development
and manufacturing of electronic devices located in Shenzhen, PRC. This
report will focus on CPIT as its business activities are most relevant to the
environmental and social aspects of the Group.
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EMISSIONS

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group. The Group
has proactively looked for and implemented new technology at various stages
of production in order to minimise its impact on the environment. The Group’s
products are designed to be safe and environmental friendly for customer use,
meaning recyclable and safe to dispose materials are specified in its designs,
and clean production processes are adopted in its manufacturing process.
Moreover, unnecessary packaging that can cause harm to environment is not
introduced into its products.

For Hong Kong office operations, the key environmental impacts from the
Group’s operations related to energy and paper consumption. To achieve
environment protection, the Group encourages employees to shift to
e-statement or scanning to reduce the use of paper and greenhouse gas
emissions; to switch off all computers and office equipment and air-conditioner
at the end of each working day.

CPIT ensures its products are produced efficiently in an energy-wise manner
at its manufacturing factory in Shenzhen, PRC. CPIT has also incorporated the
3Rs, namely Reduce, Reuse and Recycle principles (the “3Rs Principles”)
into the manufacturing process which aim to improve the reuse rate of
resources. In addition, CPIT has maintained an environmental management
system in line with the requirement of ISO 14001:2004 in practices to minimise
air, noise, energy consumption, water consumption, solid waste pollutions,
and insisted that its suppliers respect the same.

CPIT has integrated environmental objectives into the business decisions in a
cost-effective manner. CPIT has required all staff to assume environmental
responsibilities in normal operating procedures and has enhanced the
awareness of environmental and resource efficiency issues amongst the
customers, staff and stakeholders. All important green and quality assurance
policies have been posted on the notice board and stated in the standard
operating procedures of the manufacturing plant.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste of the Group during the Year 2016. In addition, no
significant fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the Year 2016.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business activities on the
environment, and supporting environmental protection programmes. In
particular, a number of initiatives designed to conserve resources were
introduced to promote employee awareness of the need to achieve efficient
utilisation of resources.

CPIT’s operation is purely SMT plus flow soldering. As stated in “Emission”
section, CPIT has maintained procedures in practices in line with
ISO14001:2004 and 3Rs Principles to minimise the energy, water and
packaging material consumption. The energy consumption is driven by energy
efficiency ratings of those SMT machines installed, which CPIT can do nothing
to minimise consumption but can switch them off whenever there is no
scheduled production.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

CPIT has established a series of policies, mechanisms and measures on
environmental protection and natural resources conservation to enhance its
efficiency in the usage of energy, water and materials and also complies with
relevant local environmental regulations and international general practices,
with an aim to reduce the use of natural resources and protect the
environment.

CPIT has dedicated responsible persons to monitor its ISO14001:2004
compliance and implementation of 3Rs Principles from time to time. The policy
statement on what needs to be enforced to preserve the environment is
printed at the back of each and every staff’s carrying badge.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human capital and
provides competitive remuneration and welfare packages. Promotion
opportunities and salary adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as annual leave, sick
leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical coverage in
accordance with local regulations.

The Group emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in respect of
hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion and other terms of
employment. The Group is committed to providing a work environment free
from any form of discrimination on the basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age,
disability or sexual orientation.
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The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the employees with
different genders, ages, skills, educational backgrounds, industry experiences
and other qualifications in order to achieve the most suitable composition and
balance.

The Group’s remuneration package is structured with reference to the
individual performance, working experience and prevailing salary levels in the
market. In additional to basic salaries and mandatory provident fund for Hong
Kong office staff, fringe benefits include a basic five-day working week, flexible
leave arrangement, medical coverage scheme and annual dinner.

CPIT has developed an employee handbook in accordance with the Labour
Law of the PRC and has distributed it to all employees since they commence
working for CPIT. The remuneration policies are determined on the basis of
performance, qualification and experience of individual employee. The
remuneration generally includes salaries and allowances. In the Year 2016,
CPIT had subscribed to those basic pension insurance, basic medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational injury insurance , maternity
insurance as prescribed by the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, as well as
housing fund schemes as prescribed by the Regulations on the Administration
of Housing Fund.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made not less
than the local government’s minimum requirements. The normal working
hours for general employees are normally 8 hours a day and 40 hours a week.
Integrated computation of working hours is implemented with reference to the
requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare on the
Group during the Year 2016. In addition, no non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that resulted in significant fines or sanctions had been
reported in the Year 2016.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and provides a
healthy and safe workplace. The Group seeks to attract and retain talented
employees through providing a safe and healthy workplace for each and every
employee in line with established internal guidelines and systems.

For Hong Kong office staff, the Group provides its employee with flexible rest
leave arrangement, medical and hospital scheme. The Group understands
that a good working environment for its employees with a safe and
comfortable working condition is very important. The Group has set a clear
guideline of work arrangement for typhoon and rainstorm warning.

CPIT applied the principles of OHSAS18001:2007 requirements to set up
occupational health and safety operating system in practices and has assigned
a designated safety officer to follow through those regulatory practices at its
manufacturing plant in Shenzhen, PRC. CPIT has been granted a Working
Safety Standardisation Certificate from State Administration of Work Safety
which is valid up to March 2017. In addition, all employees are strictly required
to follow a series of working safety standards and internal control policies. As
a result, no material industrial accident had ever been reported in the Year
2016.

Smoking is prohibited in factory areas of CPIT. First aid exercises are regularly
performed. Regular fire prevention talks and fire fighting drills are organised at
least annually to improve employees’ capability to deal with potential fire
hazards.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards on
the Group during the Year 2016. In addition, no non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that resulted in significant fines or sanctions had been
reported in the Year 2016.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has committed to provide on-the-job education and training to its
employees in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. All employees are
encouraged to enhance their skills and knowledge at every opportunity in
order to perform their current job more efficiently and effectively and to be
better prepared for career opportunities which may arise. During the Year
2016, regular training courses were provided to the employees included but
not limited to orientation training, technical training and quality training.

Performance evaluations are initiated each year. Recognising the value in the
skill and experience of our staff, the Group has adopted a policy that any
promotions will be considered internally first before hiring any outside staff. It is
the Group’s policy to select the most suitable candidate for appointment to a
higher rank based on merit, rather than on the seniority of the candidates.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group fully understand that the exploitation of child and forced labour are
universally prohibited, and therefore take the responsibility against child and
forced labour very seriously. The Group strictly comply with all laws and
regulations against child labour and forced labour for the manufacturing plant
in Shenzhen, PRC.

CPIT applied the principles listed under SA8000 with regard to child labour
and excessive long working hours. For entry registration, all employees must
present valid documents to the CPIT as follows: (i) identity card and vocational
qualification certificate; (i) social security card; (i) medical or health certificate;
(iv) recent photos; and (v) other relevant information and documents required
by CPIT. The above procedures can ensure no child labour will be employed
in manufacturing plant.

All employees of CPIT are entitled to have sick leave, injury leave and maternity
leave with medical proof in accordance with the Labour Law of PRC and Law
of the PRC on the Protection of Labour Rights and Interests and other
applicable regulations. In addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily
and are not encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is required, the
relevant employees and superior will agree mutually in written form. The
compensation for overtime work is in accordance with the provisions of the
Labour Law of PRC.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact relating to preventing child or
forced labour on the Group during the Year 2016. In addition, no non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant fines
or sanctions had been reported in the Year 2016.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations that govern
its business. The Group always adheres to international best practices and
conducts fair and unbiased procurement processes when dealing with
suppliers.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and implements the value
of honesty, integrity and fairness in its supply chain management. The Group’s
procurement procedures provide directions and guidelines on evaluation and
engagement when dealing with suppliers of goods and services to ensure
business is conducted with legally, financially and technically-sound entities. In
addition, approval procedures are in place to ensure that supplier
engagements are monitored and approved by the appropriate level of
management.
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During the selection process of suppliers, CPIT takes into account factors
such as quality of services and products, past performance and green
elements, under the major principles of ISO 9001:2008 or the ISO
14001:2004. In addition, 3Rs Principles are in practice throughout supply
chain to demonstrate its commitment to contribute towards a cleaner
environment as good corporate citizen. CPIT has asked for all major suppliers
on its supply chain to work with CPIT as a team to use energy efficient
processing equipment, non- toxic chemicals in their production, practice clean
production in their plants and eliminate unnecessary packaging in their
deliveries to drive down hazard and non-hazard waste as well as greenhouse
gases.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in terms of our
products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to ensure compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations relating to product health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. The Group requires its employees to comply with applicable
governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and regulations.

CPIT has signed environmental agreements initiated by its major customers to
confirm its determination to manufacture in accordance with environmentally
related regulatory requirements.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress on the Company during the Year 2016. In
addition, no non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in
significant fines or sanctions had been reported in the Year 2016.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly prohibited. The Group’s anti-
corruption policies set out standards of conduct to which all employees are
required to adhere in order to promote the integrity environment in the
workplace.

To combat corruption and to govern conflicts of interest, unless with the
Group’s approval, Directors and employees are prohibited from accepting any
valuable items from co-workers, customers, suppliers or other stakeholders.
Unless with approval the Board, senior management members are also
prohibited from engaging in any activities that involve a potential conflict of
interest with the Group or may do harm to the Group’s overall interests.
Breaches are subject to disciplinary actions, including the termination of
employment contracts where necessary.
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Various policies have also been formulated to accord with the Securities and
Futures Commission’s Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing, including the basic procedures for customer identification
and due diligence, suspicious transactions report and recordkeeping. Ongoing
staff training has also been carried out to ensure each of the employees is fully
aware of these policies.

CPIT is fully aware of the Group’s anti-corruption policies and of the priority to
avoid corruption from taking root in its operation. Its management understands
layered audits and clear accountability to monitor work related activities of the
next level and as well one more level below is the key to avoid possible
corruption.

In the Year 2016, there is no legal case concerning corruption brought against
the Group or our employees.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the communities in which it
operates and maintain close communications and interactions with the
communities in order to contribute to local development from time to time.

As global responsible citizen, the Group strives to improve the society image
and social responsibility through community investment. All employees of the
Group are encouraged to participate their own initiatives on helping and
supporting the local communities and neighbours.

CPIT is fully aware of the need to plough back to the community as good
corporate citizens. CPIT has arranged for its research and development team
to take in university interns during summer months to train them up and give
them hands-on experience to pave their ways for their future career
development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability and
corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as its own code effective
from 18 July 2014 (the “Listing Date”) upon the listing of the Company and
had complied with the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2016,
except for the following deviation. The Board has continued to monitor and
review the corporate governance principles and practices to ensure
compliance.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”) is the Chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company. In view of Mr. Tang is one of the co-
founders of the Group and has been operating and managing the Group since
2004, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Tang taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore the Directors consider that the deviation from the CG
Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules effective from the Listing Date on 18 July 2014.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was not

aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exe

Composition AR

The Board currently comprises 10 directors, including 4 Executive Directors, 2 ~ZEZSBAIM10ZESEAK - BF4BHTEE 22 IEH
Non-executive Directors and 4 Independent Non-executive Directors. TEZERABELIENTES -

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson (Chairman) HEERE(EE)

Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (Vice-Chairman) Kor Sing Mung, Michael %t 4 (&I /%)

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas BB A

Mr. Liu Liang Bk A

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Dr. Li Ying (Resigned on 1 February 2017) FEFET(R=_Z—tF=A—HET)

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony HFEEAE

Mr. Au Hoi Fung (Appointed on 1 February 2017) EELE(RZT—tF A —AEST)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Ms. Chan Sze Man BREFBIZ L

Mr. Lee Wai Hung FEHESTAE

Mr. Ng Ka Chung (TEN G

Ms. Eugenia Yang HBITRE LT

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all directors are set out in the FIEESEMNSSEREFEFEHAAEREENSREEE
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual B —&i- fIAZ SR NENHHLE NN AEEE
report. All directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the 7§ » SMITEEEH 2 &R B MNITEES » RUABEIAE
Group. Each executive director has sufficient experience, knowledge and  BAEGL - XA RN S BT ©

execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively

and efficiently.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1 general meeting, 4 regular Board #HE-ZT— A F+_A=+—HILtFE KT EHNEEES
meetings and other 11 Board meetings were held in addition to circulation of — @RFHZE  BRT1ABRREARE 4N FHREETSSEL N
written board resolutions. The composition of the Board and Board AHMEZRSS:H FAMEEARSHE ZEEehEE
Committees during the year and up to the date of this report, and its ZE@ZMHARKEEKER T — NEMETSHM T ELE
members’ attendance record of meetings held in 2016 are shown below: PR -

Attendance record of meetings held in 2016

“ER-AERETERNEFDE

Annual
General Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance

Name of member Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
BERH BERRAE Exg BNEZE. FHzES REZE8E ARZEE
Number of total meetings 1 15 4 4 4 4
EAY 1 15 4 4 4 4
Number of Meetings attended/Total
BHESBEZRH BH
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson 1/1 1115 N/ATEA N/A i N/A i 3/4
BRI L&
Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael 1/1 12/15  NATEA NATEAR  NATEA N/ANE A
Kor Sing Mung, Michael 5t 4
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella

(Resigned on 15 September 2016) 1/1 8/15  N/ATEMA N/A i N/A i N/ATiE
REBLZLT (RZZ—R"FNLATRBEIE)
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas 1/1 15/15  N/ATEMA N/A i N/A i N/ARiE R
BB A
Mr. Liu Liang (Appointed on 21 December 2016) N/AiE A 2/15  N/ATEA N/A 73 N/A 7N iE N/AZNiE
BlmrntE(RZE—A"F+A=Z+—BEZE)
Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Dr. Li Ying (Resigned on 1 February 2017) 1/1 15/15  N/ATEA N/A 73 N/ANiE N/ANiE
FEFE(R_T—+tF A —HEHT)
Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony 11 14/15 N/ANiE N/A i N/A i N/ANiE
HFEEE
Mr. Au Hoi Fung (Appointed on 1 February 2017) N/ATiE R N/A i N/A R iE N/A i A N/A i N/ATiE
ESE(R_ZE—+F_A—HEZE)
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Ms. Chan Sze Man 1/1 13/15 4/4 4/4 4/4  N/ATEA
BREFE A+
Mr. Lee Wai Hung 11 14/15 4/4 4/4 4/4 4/4
FEERE
Mr. Ng Ka Chung 0/1 13/15 3/4 3/4 3/4 3/4
hREEE
Ms. Eugenia Yang 11 14/15 3/4 3/4 3/4 3/4
HBTmZ T
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CG Code provision A.6.7 requires that Independent Non-Executive Directors
and other Non-executive Directors shall attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders. Two Non-executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors attended Annual
General Meeting. The other Directors were obliged to be away for their
business matters and for negotiating with potential business partners.

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management
company’s business and is collectively responsible for the Company’s affair
under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should make
decision objectively in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

i

) Setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the Group’s
strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(ii) Diversification and extension of activities into new business areg;

(iii) Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  Dividend policy;

(V) Material acquisitions and disposal;

(Vi) Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;

(vii)  Monitoring the performance of the Management; and

(vii)  Determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 20 June 2014. The
policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board that should have
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with policies. The
composition and diversity policies of the Board is reviewed annually and
regularly. The Board should ensure that its changes in composition will not
result in any undue interruption. The Board members should possess
appropriate professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
their duties and functions. The Board would diversify its members according
to the Company’s situations and need. While participating in nomination and
recommendation of director candidates during the year, each member of the
Board may consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review the policy
concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report, including any
quantitative targets and standards and its progress with policy
implementation.
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In 2016, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board and considered the
Board composition and diversity is appropriate.

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to
entering into any significant transactions by the Management.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies set by the Board;
(ii) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(iii) Closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv) Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(v) Managing the Group’s day-to-day business.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 4 Independent Non-executive Directors; and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors were
independent during the year ended 31 December 2016 since their respective
date of appointment.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors by the Company.

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson, the Chairman and an executive Director, is the
spouse of Ms. Chan Kai Hei, a director of the Company’s subsidiary Central
Pacific International Group Limited. Save as otherwise disclosed herein, there
is no family or other material relationship among members of the Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses
and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and
updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors provided their
training record to the Company in respect of their participation in training
activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are as

follows:

materials relevant

FEEXRRE

EREF(BEBIYIFNTES) BEREREZTINAEAE
EXBERTHNOHAREE - ARENSRABRS REMIT
Fl o ABRREEREFOMBEIGEE - WHlaIER EmRE
REMEREERENENERAZBESRISEHER
HERABR LI REAS R FEEERATRNEM

REE-Z-—R"ET-A=T-RILFE B=RKE2HE
BRBEERETRAREE 2B RBENEIES (M
R &) AARR ARSI IR - BT

Reading Attending the
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”) is both the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company. In view of Mr. Tang is one of the co-
founders of the Group and has been operating and managing the Group since
2004, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Tang taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. The role of the Chairman is primarily responsible for managing
the Board, whereas the role of the chief executive officer is primarily
responsible for overseeing the various businesses of the Group. Their
respective roles and responsibilities are summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the Chairman include: (i) leading the Board and ensuring
that the Board functions effectively and smoothly; (i) chairing the Board and
shareholder’s meetings; (i) approving the agenda for each Board meeting,
taking into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by the other
Directors and the company secretary of the Company for inclusion in the
agenda; (iv) ensuring that all Directors receive all relevant information prior to
each meeting and are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; (v)
ensuring all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner; (vi) encouraging all Directors, including the
Independent Non-executive Directors, to actively participate in all Board and
Board committees meetings and promoting a culture of openness for the
Directors to share and voice their concerns on all matters during each
meeting; (vii) ensuring that good corporate governance practices and
procedures are established and followed; and (viii) taking appropriate steps to
provide effective communication with shareholders and to ensure that
shareholders’ view are communicated to the Board as a whole.

Responsibilities of the chief executive officer include: (i) implementing the
Group’s policy and strategies set by the Board; (i) strategic planning of
different business and functions; (iii) closely monitoring operational and
financial results in accordance with plans and budgets; (iv) assuming full
accountability to the Board for all aspects of the Group’s operations and
performance; (v) maintaining ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and the
other Directors; (vi) developing and leading an effective executive team; (vii)
putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in place ;
and (viii) representing the Company and managing the Group’s day-to-day
business.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are appointed for an initial term of one or three years and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”). At each annual general
meeting, not less than one-third of the Directors then in office shall retire and
every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

All existing Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or fee per annum respectively. The
remuneration of each Director is subject to the annual review of the Board with
reference to his contribution in terms of time, effort and his expertise.
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Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year are
disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred
during the performance of their duties to the Company and are eligible for
share options under the share option scheme of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the
compliance committee, all with specific terms of reference clearly defining the
powers and responsibilities of the respective board committees. All board
committees are required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in
relation to their decisions, findings or recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference that are in conformity of the requirements of the CG
Code which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the 4 Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Eugenia Yang, Ms. Chan Sze Man, Mr. Lee
Wai Hung and Mr. Ng Ka Chung, and chaired by Ms. Eugenia Yang, with all
members being Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company in full
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 4 audit committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 32 of this annual report.

The functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

(i) Appointment of the Company’s auditors
(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

(b) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

() to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;
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(ii)
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(d)  to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor 0 HEEINEZBAIREIFZERG TR
to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” WF AT SRULAREM ST - [ INEE X BT ]
includes any entity that is under common control, ownership or PREBEZBNRTENFR—IZEHE - 18
management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable EREEREZ THEMERS - K—E&EME
and informed third party knowing all relevant information would FBEERENMNE=R EEBEBERATEETE
reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally or ZEBBRZEBEZEN AT T HEEREE
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the Board, BH—HIEMER - BRZESEREMN
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where ERBTHRRENEEHNEETSRSE - #5
action or improvement is needed; and Wi EE - &k

(e)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the quarterly (if e HwmBEFEEE)  PHMKRBOHBZERD

any), interim and final audits and any matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of the Board and
other employees of the Group at the discretion of the Audit
Committee where necessary).

Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In reviewing these reports before submission
to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:
(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

2) major judgmental areas;

©)) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

5) compliance with accounting standards;

6) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(7) any connected transactions and their impact on the
profitability of the Company;

8) items requiring disclosure; and

(9)  the cash flow position;
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(b) regarding point (a) above:

(iii)

(1) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
report and accounts, it should give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors.

Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures

(@)

()

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigations findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
pbetween the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;
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(h) to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters and ensuring
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

(i) to report to the Board on the matters in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules;

() to report to the Board on the matters set out in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

(k) to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for employees
and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the audit
committee about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Company; and

(0] to review the disclosure in the Company’s interim and annual
reports regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial
actions.

Major accomplishments of the Audit Committee in 2016 comprised the
following:

(@) reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a quarterly,
half-yearly and annually basis, where applicable;

(b) reviewed the external auditor’s significant findings and
management’s response to the recommendation raised, if any;

() reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and the
adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting functions of
the Group;

(d) reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2016 and the letter of representation to be given by the
Board; and

(e) considered and approved the 2016 external audit fees and
engagement letters.

The Group’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by management.
With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system, during the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had appointed Zhonghui Anda
Risk Services Limited (“ZHONGHUA RS”), as independent consultant, to
review the Group’s internal control systems and recommend actions to
improve our internal controls.
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Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was generally effective and in compliance with the
requirements of the CG Code C.2.1 for the year ended 31 December 2016 in
all material respects, provided that the control on dissemination of Inside
Information and use of financial resources could be further enhanced.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and recommended approval to
the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (‘Remuneration
Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG
Code are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the 4 Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng Ka Chung, Ms. Chan Sze Man, Mr.
Lee Wai Hung and Ms. Eugenia Yang, and chaired by Mr. Ng Ka Chung.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 4 remuneration committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 32 of this Report.

The role and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration, of
which a significant portion of Executive Director’s remuneration should
link rewards to corporate and individual performance, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(ii) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(iii) either (a) to determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; or
(b) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-
executive Directors;

(V) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the

Company and its subsidiaries;
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(v to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

(vi)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are
consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

(viii)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration;

(ix)  to advise the Company to disclose details of any remuneration payable
to members of senior management by band in its annual reports; and

(x) to advise the shareholders of the Company with respect to any service
contracts of Directors that require shareholders’ approval under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Major accomplishments of the Remuneration Committee in 2016 comprised
the following:

i) reviewed matters relating to the remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the CG
Code and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the 4 Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Ms. Eugenia Yang, Mr. Ng Ka
Chung and Ms. Chan Sze Man, and chaired by Mr. Lee Wai Hung.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 4 nomination committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 32 of this annual
report.

The role and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and

select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;
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(iii) to receive nominations from shareholders or Directors when such are
tendered and to make recommendations to the Board on the candidacy
of the nominees, having regard to the Board’s compositional
requirements and suitability of the nominees;

(iv)  to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
Independent Non-executive Director at the general meeting, it should
set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting why they
believe he should be elected and the reasons why they consider him to
be independent; and

(V) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

Major accomplishments of the Nomination Committee in 2016 comprised the
following:

i) recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr. Liu Liang and Mr.
Kor Sing Mung, Michael as Executive Directors of the Company.

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a compliance committee (“Compliance
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Compliance Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Compliance Committee is currently composed of the 3 Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Eugenia Yang, Mr. Lee Wai Hung and Mr. Ng
Ka Chung, the company secretary Mr. Chou Chiu Ho and the Chairman Mr.
Tang Wai Ting Samson. The Compliance Committee is chaired by Ms.
Eugenia Yang.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 4 compliance committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 32 of this annual

report.

The role and functions of the Compliance Committee include:

i) to establish, maintain and approve the compliance system of the
Group;

(ii) to support and provide instruction to ensure that each department to
establish, execute and maintain its compliance system;

(iii) to approve the compliance manual and ensure it is updated;

(ivy  to organise education and training programmes on compliance,
including compliance seminars;
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(vi)

(vii)

(i)

(ix)

RERRE

to monitor the status of the compliance system and discuss from time
to time with relevant management members on the compliance system
to ascertain what action, if any, is required for ongoing compliance;

to investigate compliance problems and take appropriate measures
when one arises (it may instruct the relevant department(s) to deal with
the problem depending on its nature);

to delegate the day-to-day implementation and monitoring of
compliance system to the compliance offer and company secretary;

to review and monitor the ongoing compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant laws and regulations;

to note any material deficiencies and take remedial actions if necessary
and at all times keep the Board abreast of any such actions and/or
developments; and

to review the disclosures in the Company’s interim and annual reports
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions.

Major accomplishments of the Compliance Committee in 2016 comprised the
following:

U

(i)

review the disclosures in the Company’s 2015 annual report regarding
any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any; and

review the disclosures in the Company’s 2016 interim report regarding
any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held 4 meetings for the purpose of reviewing the compliance of
corporate governance policies for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The duties of the Board include:

(i)

(i

(iv)
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to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the CG Report.
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Major accomplishments in 2016 comprised the following:

(i) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made appropriate amendments;

(ii) arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

(iii) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the external
auditor, World Link CPA Limited, to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to approximately HK$550,000 and HK$118,000
respectively. The non-audit service represented service fees for tax compliance
and other review services.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 were audited by World
Link CPA Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
World Link CPA Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the Group’s
financial statements to give a true and fair view. The responsibilities of auditors
in respect of the financial statements are set out in the report of the auditors
forming part of this Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control system
which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key risk exposures. The
Group’s system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage and
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and fulfilment of the business
objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the
Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing reasonable
assurance in relation to protection of material assets and shareholders’
interests. During the year under review, ZHONGHUA RS has reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and has provided
written reports to the Audit Committee.
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The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to identify,
assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line of defence,
business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risk
associated with each business or transaction. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provide technical
support, develops new system and oversees portfolio management. It ensures
risks are within acceptable range and that the first line of defence is effective.
As the final line of defense, ZHONGHUA RS assists the Audit Committee to
review the first and second lines of defence.

The Group is committed to the identification, evaluation and management of
risks associated with its business activities through ongoing assessment of a
risk register, by considering the likelihood and impact of each identified risk.
The Group has implemented an effective control system which includes a
defined management structure with limits of authority, a sound management
system and periodic review of the Group’s performance by the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2016, covering the material financial, operational
and compliance controls, which are considered effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience, training and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions on an annual basis.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company or their trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered inside
information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. The Executive Directors
have responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be
issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to
time.

The Company has put in place procedures on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place any
person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the market to price
the listed securities of the Company with the latest available information. The
Company has appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify
and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of
the Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.
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GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$44,094,000 (2015: approximately HK$17,526,000) and
net cash outflow from operating activities of approximately HK$28,387,000
(2015: approximately HK$18,359,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016,
and had decrease in net current assets by approximately HK$35,192,000
(2015: approximately HK$16,535,000) with net amount due to a director of
approximately HK$6,494,000 (2015: approximately HK$6,275,000) as at 31
December 2016. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration to the impact of the
current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group.

The validity of the Group to operate as a going concern is dependent upon the
outcomes of the Group to (i) attain profitable and positive cash flows from
operations; and (ii) obtain external source of funding in the immediate and
longer term, at a level sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of
the Group. As further disclosed in note 40(b) to the financial statements, the
Company and a placing agent (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) on 16 March 2017, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to appoint the Placing Agent to, on a best effort basis,
procure placees to subscribe for the 4.0% coupon unlisted bonds with a term
of 12 months, to be issued in tranches by the Company in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$30,000,000 (the “Bonds”). Up to the approval
date on these financial statements, the placing of Bonds has yet been
completed which creates an uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. Notwithstanding the above, the directors considered that it is
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these consolidated
financial statements.

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and liquidity in the foreseeable
future, the Group has taken the following measures:

— in the event the placing of Bonds was failed to complete, Mr. Kor Sing
Mung, Michael, a director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company has agreed to provide interest-free and unsecured financial
support to the extent of HK$15,000,000 to the Group for the next
twelve months to meet its financial obligations as they fall due;

- negotiating with bankers for obtaining new banking facilities;

— the directors of the Company have been taking various cost control
measures to tighten the costs of operations;

— the directors of the Company have reviewed the performance of
individual projects and where appropriate, to abandon or dispose of

those non-profitable projects; and

— the Group has been implementing various strategies to enhance the
Group’s revenue.
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Based on the cash flow projections of the Group and having taken into
account the available financial resources of the Group together with the above
measures, the directors have concluded that the Group is able to continue on
a going concern basis and to meet their financial liabilities as and when they
fall due for the next twelve months. Should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the financial
statements to adjust the value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these potential adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company Secretary was Mr.
Chou Chiu Ho.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Company Secretary are set out
in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Mr. Chou Chiu Ho
confirming that he took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The Company is of the view that
Mr. Chou has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

On 17 March 2017, Mr. Chou has tendered his resignation as the company
secretary with effect from 18 March 2017. As at the date of this report, the
Company is still in the process of identifying suitable candidate to fill in the
vacancy of company secretary of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Article 64 of the Articles; and
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(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Apart from sending email to info@mpgroup.com.hk, shareholders may send
their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
headquarter and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
Unit 5, 4/F, Energy Plaza, No. 92 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 3525 1583, for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by
means of written requisition to convene an EGM following the procedures set
out above.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no significant change in the
Company’s memorandum and the Articles.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) present their report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Group for the year is set out in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year and analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators and prospects of the
Group’s business are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
on page 5 to 6 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 15
of the annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 135.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” and
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2016 was
Nil.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
and association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 136 of the annual report.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2016.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson (Chairman)

Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas

Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella (Resigned on 15 September 2016)
Mr. Liu Liang (Appointed on 21 December 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony

Dr. Li Ying (Resigned on 1 February 2017)

Mr. Au Hoi Fung (Appointed on 1 February 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Chan Sze Man

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

Mr. Ng Ka Chung

Ms. Eugenia Yang
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ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE FORTHCOMING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Liu Liang and Mr. Au Hoi Fung, shall hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. Mr. Liu Liang and Mr. Au Hoi Fung have agreed to offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Pursuant to the Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Tang
Wai Ting, Samson, Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony and Ms. Eugenia Yang shall retire
from office as Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson, Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony and Ms. Eugenia Yang,
being eligible, have agreed to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date and shall continue thereafter unless and until it is terminated by the
Company or Mr. Tang by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to
the other and he is subject to retirement from office and re-election in
accordance with the Articles, Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 15 September 2016, Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 26 May 2015 and Mr. Liu Liang has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 21 December 2016.
The service agreements can be terminated by not less than three months’
prior notice in writing.

Non-executive Directors

Each of Dr. Li Ying and Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony have entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of one year commencing on 6
October 2016, and Mr. Au Hoi Fung has entered into a service agreement with
the company for a term of three years commencing on 1 February 2017
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the next following annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. The service agreements can be terminated by either party by
giving one month’s notice in writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 20
June 2014 and shall continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by
one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other party.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has entered into a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

52

EERNEERRBFAERE

WEFERBEARRESEMAE 1125 BRLEREIE
EEREIBEARBAEERRBERERIL  EHFHEER
BRET - BIREERGEIERECRENAR B ERERR
BERGEEEE - REFARZZMANE 108 15K - HEE
4 HTFEREMETRLZEIENEERRAFAERE
RIEES - HEERE  WFHELERGTRLTAERL
EREREERIATAGMEEET -

EECRBEEN

BITES

BEE R A mARRR L RGHE  VIFPEEESHAE £
TMHERS=F  BFEEN - BRIEREERDA AL E
ME—FEE TR =EANEMmBAL I HE - BHEAR
JEARRIRAT R ] 3 E (T ¢ Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael 5t 4
DEARBRIMERERS  AHE T "FhLATHARE
STAE=F B A D BARRG L REHE - T8
ZE-RFRAAZHRARGREB=F UREIRALEDH
ARARFMRE W THE 2 E+-_A=-+—Bit
FTAB=F - REHZEUBET - ARE=—EAANEEBHNL
Ik

FHUITES

FEE L RHFE LD BARATLRBHE  EHA =
Z—RFTARNBRRE—F  MESEEESEARE
ARG - THME T —tF A - REAH=F
RIRBEARBBRMAAANARE TERFAFAG®RER
EREREE - REBATRE—FEE—EANEERD
ARE o

BUFHITES
BEFATESCRARARLRB HE - THE-F
—OFEANAZTEEFAI=F  HERRFEET  EEHEM
—AMB—HEH—EANEImARMAK LRI -

BENTERREFAS LERETNERMEEAEE]
YA R—FRAEHAXNEEOEEBERIN WERT
ARE o

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2016



Directors’ Report

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on page 16 to 21 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} &5 2016

EERPALAXBEMEBMEANRS - B
RENTHEENEAER

BERABRMNBRARRINAARA AR EEREEAER
(TBERSER)NEREBEBERNEARS WX
BRNRARFERLF NEMREFE

ESrEREEEREE

ARBEERAEESRERBEEFBHNAFRE6
E21H

I BUR

AEBERERBZHMBEROFHZREERENS 2B - BF
RBEAHIE ©

AAREEZFHEFHERRLEARR 2 MERER - B
ARBRA LB TIB G BTEE -
EERIBREHAL ZHM

EERTERSFALTZHHZ S H BN GRAMBRE
MizE14 o

BB
AR B 2 SRAE R RIS BN R A BT IRRM 17

53



Directors’ Report

ESERA

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

EEREIRTHRABREQARAAFEADN
CEIEMEBEBREBORD - HERO K

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE BETINERE KA

COMPANY OR ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE

COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2016, the interest and short position of the Directors and R -Z—X"F+-A=+—0 ARAEERTETHAE
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and  RARA T R EEBEE (FEREF RIS EN ([HERE

deben

tures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as

record

ed in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352

BIRGID EXVED D - R REFHEERLCAR
B REERGIE 2 RFENARBELM - REA
EREMMRBNES A6 IR EMETAERETRZHOM

of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions R
Ordinary shares of the Company ARAREER

EREAME RN E MBS AR T -

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares issued share

Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) capital

RHEHE (HAEAREBRIT

=18 SR RERNE (Bfat1) RAzHDE

Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”) (note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 1,028,900,000 (L) 19.68%
g (8] (Aat2) R EEE R

Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 1,205,000,000 (L) 23.0%

Kor Sing Mung, Michael 424 (##7F 3)

Notes:
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AR R

The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share
capital of the Company.

As CPIT Investments Limited is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. Tang and 1%
by Ms. Chan Kai Hei (“Mrs. Tang”), the spouse of Mr. Tang, Mr. Tang is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by CPIT Investments Limited under the SFO.

The Company has been informed by CPIT Investments 993,000,000 shares of the
Company held by CPIT Investments have been sold to an independent third party
on 19 January 2017.

Seize Minute Limited is beneficially owned as to 100% by MK Investments
Limited. MK Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael,
Accordingly, Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael, and MK Investments Limited are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Seize Minute Limited under the
SFO.

et -

1. [L EBRRR AR RN ERNITFR -

2. R CPIT Investments Limited FA &0 45 48 R BR{ERE 22+ ([ B8 A ])
(B A ZBB) 9 RIE 25 H 99% K 1% s - RIBFEH K
HAE &I - B0 58 A 4548 B CPIT Investments Limited BT 43 3%
MDHREEER o

ARATECPIT Investments 541 - EER =T —+F—A+h
A )78 58 = 77 6 B 5 ) 993,000,000 B AR A B RE(D ©

3. Seize Minute Limited FiMK Investments Limited 2 & & 25 A °
MK Investments Limited £ Kor Sing Mung, Michael /¢ 4 & &
B o Bt IRIEE S R EFE &SI - Kor Sing Mung, Michael
Je 4 K MK Investments Limited #4547 Seize Minute Limited
PSR HE A R o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of
listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO:

B EXPIEEN  R_T—RE+-A=1+—8  HEE
ERARRREBITBRABRAA B S EAIEBEE (EH
REH REEEPIZEXVER) RN - HERH SESS
BABRARRBIREE S MR GHIEIB2GFENER
- kiR EAI R ETRRIE 646 (AT LR ETAESR
BT HMREERNBRITAE AR R MR EA R
KR

FERRRAEMATREQXRDRG REBRSD
MR R AR

WZZE-RE+ZA=1+—H REEFLEEEIZE 336
GAGENERMMLE  TIAL(BEEHARREET
BABBRIN RAD B RAAER O P EEEaIAR

Long positions HE
Ordinary shares of the Company AERFEBR
Percentage of
Number of  the Company’s
shares issued share
Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) capital
RHBHE (hAARSBIT

=k S RESENEE

(et 1) BAZBHED

Mrs. Chan Kai Hei (“Mrs. Tang”) (note 2)
BREERE L ([88K1) (Frat2)

Interest of spouse

iR e

CPIT Investments Limited (note 2) (note 4)
CPIT Investments Limited (#/:£2) (HfzE4)

Beneficial owner

BEmEEA

MK Investments Limited (note 3)
MK Investments Limited (#77£3) ZESEE S

Seize Minute Limited (note 3) Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled corporation

Seize Minute Limited (477 3)

Huang Ke Beneficial owner

Ei BEEAA

Mak Jone Beneficial owner

5 BEEAA

Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share

capital of the Company.

BEmEEA
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1,028,900,000 (L) 19.68%
1,028,900,000 (L) 19.68%
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500,000,000 (L) 9.56%
326,560,000 (L) 6.25%
BsE
1. L ERERAATRA RN A -
55



Directors’ Report

EEERS

As CPIT Investments Limited is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. Tang and 1%
by Mrs. Tang, the spouse of Mr. Tang, Mr. Tang is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by CPIT Investments Limited under the SFO. Mrs. Tang, being the
spouse of Mr. Tang, is deemed to be interested in all the Shares that Mr. Tang is
interested in. Accordingly, each of Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by CPIT Investments Limited under the SFO.

Seize Minute Limited is beneficially owned as to 100% by MK Investments
Limited. MK Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael,
Accordingly, Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael, and MK Investments Limited are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Seize Minute Limited under the
SFO.

The Company has been informed by CPIT Investments that an aggregate of
25,000,000 shares of the Company (the “Pledged Shares”) held by CPIT
Investments have been pledged on 24 November 2015 in favour of an
independent third party (the “Lender”) as a security for a loan amount of
HK$31,250,000 provided by the Lender to CPIT Investments. As of 24 November
2015 and 30 June 2016, the Pledged Shares represent approximately 0.48% of
the issued share capital of the Company for both days.

The Company has been informed by CPIT Investments that 993,000,000 shares
of the Company held by CPIT Investments have been sold to an independent third
party on 19 January 2017.

The Company has been notified by CPIT Investments that there is a dispute
between CPIT Investments and the Lender in respect of the Lender’s dealing with
the Pledged Shares. CPIT Investments has commenced legal proceedings in the
High Court of the Republic of Singapore on 12 January 2016 in respect of such
dispute.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no other interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to

recognize and acknowledge the contributions that Eligible Participants (as
defined below) have made or may make to the Group.

Eligible Participants

The Board may at its discretion grant right(s) to subscribe for Share(s)
pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”) to any of
the following persons (the “Eligible Participants”):

(@)
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any Director, employee or officer of any company in the Group who is
employed by any company in the Group (whether full time or part time)
(the “Employee”), consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the
“Affiliate”); or

2. FRFACPIT Investments Limited FR &0 45 48 S B8 K (B85 4 2 B ts)
DRIE S A 99% K 1%z - RIEEH KBEKD - 85
A48 B CPIT Investments Limited Ff #35 A% 0 i B 1 25 - B0
KBS 2 Bl A8) A8 AR B e £ B 2 P B BR (0 7R
BiEw o B BIEEFRBEGRD - BEERBAREA

A CPIT Investments Limited BT 43 A% 17 1 & 125 -
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(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any Director, Employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or

(c) a company beneficially owned by any Director, Employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor
to the Group or an Affiliate.

Exercise Price

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board and notified to each Eligible Participants who
accepts the offer (the “Offer”) by the Company to that Eligible Participant to
accept an Option in accordance with the terms of this Scheme (the
“Grantee”, and where the context permits, include any person who is entitled
to any Option in consequence of the death of the original Grantee (being an
individual)) (in the letter containing the Offer of the grant of the Option) and
shall not be less than the highest of:

() the closing price of a Share as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities (the “Trading Day”);

(b) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five Trading
Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and

(c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Grant of Option and acceptance of Offer

An Offer shall be in such written form as the Board may from time to time
determine. Such Offer shall specify the exercise price, the exercise period and
the other relevant terms and conditions of the Option, and shall require the
Eligible Participant to undertake to hold the Option on the terms on which it is
to be granted and to be bound by the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
and all other conditions attaching to the Offer and shall remain open for
acceptance by the Eligible Participant concerned for a period of not less than
5 business days from the date of Offer, except for any Offer which is made
within the last 5 business days of the life of the Share Option Scheme, the
Offer shall remain open for acceptance on a business day by the Eligible
Participant concerned for a period of not longer than the remaining life of the
Share Option Scheme. An Offer cannot be accepted by an Eligible Participant
who ceases to be qualified as an Eligible Participant after the Offer has been
made. No Offer shall be capable of or open for acceptance after the expiry of
10 years from the adoption date (i.e. 20 June 2014) (the “Adoption Date”) of
the Share Option Scheme.
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An Offer shall be deemed to have been accepted when the Company receives
the letter containing the offer duly signed by the Grantee together with a
remittance of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum in any currency as the
Board may determine) in favour of the Company as consideration for the grant
thereof. Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable. Once
accepted, the Option is granted as from the date on which it was offered to
the relevant Eligible Participant.

Maximum number of Shares

(@)

58

Subject to paragraphs (b) to (d) below, the maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not, in aggregate,
exceed 500,000,000 Shares, being approximately 9.6% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of the Annual Report (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) unless approved by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) pursuant to paragraph (c) below. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Subject to paragraphs (c) and (d) below, the Scheme Mandate Limit
may be renewed by the Shareholders of the Company in general
meeting from time to time provided always that the Scheme Mandate
Limit so renewed must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of such renewal by Shareholders of the Company in
general meeting. Upon such renewal, all options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including those exercised, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company) prior to the approval of such
renewal shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit as renewed. A circular must be sent to the Shareholders
of the Company containing such relevant information from time to time
as required by the GEM Listing Rules in connection with the general
meeting at which their approval is sought.

Subject to paragraph (d) below, the Board may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant Options beyond the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Company before such approval is sought
and the Company must issue a circular to the Shareholders of the
Company containing such relevant information from time to time as
required by the GEM Listing Rules in relation to any such proposed
grant to such Eligible Participants.
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(d)  The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
involving the issue or grant of options or similar rights over Shares or
other securities by the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary in the terms of the Share Option Scheme, no options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of our Company if this will result in the said 30% limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Any grant of further Options above this limit shall be subject to
the following requirements:

() approval of the Shareholders of the Company at general meeting, with
such Eligible Participant and its associates abstaining from voting;

(b) a circular in relation to the proposal for such further grant having been
sent by the Company to its Shareholders with such information from
time to time as required by the GEM Listing Rules;

(c) the number and terms of the Options to be granted to such proposed
Eligible Participant shall be fixed before the Shareholders’ approval
mentioned in paragraph (a) above; and

(d) for the purpose of calculating the minimum exercise price for the Shares
in respect of the further Options proposed to be so granted, the date of
the Board meeting for proposing such grant of further Options shall be
taken as the date of offer of such Options.

Grant of Options to certain connected persons

Any grant of Options to any Director, chief executive, management
Shareholder or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, must be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (but excluding, for all purposes, any independent non-executive
Director who is a proposed Eligible Participant).

Where any grant of Options to a substantial Shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates would result in the
total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted and to be granted (including Options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of the grant:

(a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and
(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at

the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,
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such further grant of Options must be approved by the Shareholders of the
Company on a poll in a general meeting where all connected persons of the
Company must abstain from voting (except where such connected person(s)
intends to vote against the proposed grant of Option and his intention to do
S0 has been stated in the circular to be sent to the Company’s Shareholders).
The Company will send a circular to the Shareholders containing the
information required under the GEM Listing Rules.

Time of exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the
Adoption Date and as at 31 December 2016, the remaining life of the Share
Option Scheme is approximately 7.5 years, after which no further Options will
be issued but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
Options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

The Board may impose such terms and conditions of the offer of grant either
on a case-by-case basis or generally as are not inconsistent with the Share
Option Scheme, including but not limited to the minimum period for such an
Option must be held, if applicable.

No Options were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme during the Review Period and there were no
outstanding Options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2016 and the date of the Annual Report.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”), on 20 June 2014. For the year ended 31
December 2016, 97,200,000 share options granted under Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were lapsed. Except for the lapsed share options as
mentioned above, during the year ended 31 December 2016, none of share
options were granted, exercised and cancelled. There was no share option
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme remain outstanding as at 31
December 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or

any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to

=§:

a8

FA - BERAR R BE A EBE R HOEERITR
THERTLRAT B AR »

TEEFRHUER
FR - EBEF REERELAEEZHE RRE2 AR

the major customers and suppliers respectively during the year are as follows: T
Sales Purchases
HE 23
The largest customer BAREF 15.1% N/A ANiE
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFBE 71.0% N/A i
The largest supplier SAMERE N/A 7~ 14%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEAE N/A 7N 50%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which to the

knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share

capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

(b)

Possible acquisition

On 3 February 2017, the Company entered into the memorandum of
understanding (“MOU”) with the target company incorporated in the
PRC in respect of the possible acquisition of the said target company
(the “Possible Acquisition”). The target company is principally
engaged in research, development, design, manufacture and sales of
weak alkaline waste-free water purification machine. The Company
believes that the Possible Acquisition, if materializes, will enable the
Company to complement on the business of research, development,
manufacturing and trading of electronic devices. The Company will
make further announcement(s) as and when appropriate and comply
with all other applicable requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. Our
Group will keep the shareholders abreast of the latest development of
the Group. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 February 2017.

Proposed placement of Bonds

The Company had entered into the Placing Agreement with the Placing
Agent on 16 March 2017, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
appoint and the Placing Agent agreed to act as the placing agent for
the purposes of arranging, on a best efforts basis, any independent
professionals, institutional or private investor(s) procured by the Placing
Agent to subscribe for the Bonds pursuant to the Placing Agreement
during the period from the date of the Placing Agreement and end on
the date falling the 30th day from the date of the Placing Agreement, at
the issue price of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds (the
“Proposed Placing”).
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As of the approval date on these financial statements, the Proposed
Placing is under progress and not yet completed.

Details are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20 March
2017.

Litigation

On 27 July 2016, the Company received a writ of summons filed by
Kim, Sungho as the plaintiff against (i) CPIT Investments Limited, which
is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr.
Tang”), an executive director and the chairman of the Company, and
1% by Ms. Chan Kai Hei (“Mrs. Tang”), a director of Central Pacific
International Group Limited which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Tang); (i) Mr. Tang; (i) Mrs.
Tang; (iv) Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (an executive director and the
vice-chairman of the Company); (v) Mr. Yang Wu; and (vi) the Company
as the defendants under an action number HCA 1935/2016 (“First
Proceeding”) in the High Court of Hong Kong (“Court”) regarding
certain dealings in the shares of the Company; and on 12 August 2016,
the Company received a writ of summons filed by Lim Hang Young as
the plaintiff against (i) World Link CPA Limited (the auditor of the
Company) (“Auditor”); (i) Mr. Tang; (i) Mr. Chan Kwon Chi Vicky (a
director of CPIT Investments Limited); (iv) CPIT Investments Limited;
and (v) the Company as the defendants under an action number HCA
2041/2016 (“Second Proceeding”) in the Court regarding, inter alia,
certain accounting issues. The Company has obtained orders from the
Court on 18 January 2017 to dismiss the First Proceeding and the
Second Proceeding against the Company with costs of the proceedings
to be paid by Kim, Sungho and Lim Hang Young respectively. The
Company is therefore no longer a party in these actions. Details of the
above legal proceedings are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 27 July 2016, 12 August 2016 and 3 February 2017.

On 13 February 2017, Charles Zhi, Kim, Sungho, Lim Hang Young, Kim
Kyungsoo and Joung Jong Hyun (collectively referred to as the
“Plaintiffs”) had file a claim against (i) the Company; (i) Mr. Kor Sing
Mung, Michael; (i) Mr. Tang; (iv) Mrs. Tang; (v) Mr. Yang Wu; and (vi)
CPIT Investments under action number HCMP 326/2017 (“Third
Proceeding”) in the High Court.

The Plaintiffs had requested the High Court to grant an order to the
above defendants for submission of the following documentations to
the examination of the Stock Exchange; Securities and Futures
Commission; and the Financial Reporting Council: (a) all ledger
accounts of CPIT Investments; (b) all related documents of the sale and
purchase of 200,000,000 shares of the Company between Mr. Yang
Wu and CPIT Investments; (c) identity documents of Mr. Yang Wu; (d)
all related documents of the pledge of the Company’s shares by CPIT
Investments to obtain financing since November 2015; and (e) the
nominee agreement between Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael and Mr.
Tang, if any.

(c)
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(f)

The directors of the Company are currently in the process of assessing
of the possible impact of the Third Proceeding on the Group and not
yet concluded up to the approval date on these financial statements.

Resignation and appointment of non-executive Directors
Dr. Li Ying has resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 February 2017 due to his other business
commitments and the Company has approved the appointment of Mr.
Au Hoi Fung as a non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 1 February 2017. Details of the above are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 January 2017.

Resignation of company secretary and authorized
representative

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho has tendered his resignation as the company
secretary, authorized representative and member of the compliance
committee of the Company with effect from 18 March 2017 due to his
personal career development and Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael, currently
an executive Director, has been appointed as the authorized
representative of the Company with effect from 18 March 2017. The
Company is in the process of identifying suitable candidate to fill in the
vacancy of company secretary of the Company. Details of the above
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 20 March 2017.

Change in use of Listing proceeds

The Board has resolved to change the use of part of the proceeds from
the issue of new shares of the Company under the placing as set out in
the Prospectus. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 20 March 2017.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) as at 31 December 2016 had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with

the business of the Group or any other conflicts of interest with the Group.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

In relation to the deed of non-competition dated 20 June 2014 (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) given by Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson, Ms. Chan Kai Hei,
CPIT Investments Limited, Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael, MK Investments
Limited and Seize Minute Limited (collectively the “Covenantors”) in favour of
the Company and set out in Prospectus, the obligation of Mr. Kor Sing Mung,
Michael, MK Investments Limited and Seize Minute Limited under the Deed of
Non-competition have ceased on 18 July 2014 when they and their associates
ceased to own 30% or more of the then issued share capital of the Company
directly or indirectly; and the obligation of Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson, Ms.
Chan Kai Hei and CPIT Investments Limited under the Deed of Non-
competition have ceased on 17 August 2015 when they and their associates
ceased to own 30% on more of the then issued share capital of the Company
directly or indirectly.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages 30 to 49 of
this annual report.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company, Ample Capital Limited,
as at 31 December 2016, except for the compliance adviser agreement
entered into between the Company and Ample Capital Limited dated 9 April
2014, neither Ample Capital Limited or its directors, employees or close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in relation to
the Group.

AUDITORS

World Link CPA Limited were appointed by the Directors to fill the casual
vacancy after RSM Nelson Wheeler resigned as auditors of the Company on 7
January 2015. Save as disclosed above, there have been no other changes of
auditors since 7 January 2015. A resolution for reappointment of World Link
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Tang Wai Ting, Samson
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2017
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CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MILLENNIUM PACIFIC GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Millennium Pacific
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 135, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the financial statements which reveals that the
Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$44,094,000 and net cash outflow from operating activities of
approximately HK$28,387,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016, and
had decrease in net current assets by approximately HK$35,192,000 with net
amount due to a director of approximately HK$6,494,000 as at 31 December
2016. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to the
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which is
dependent upon the outcomes of the Group to (i) attain profitable and positive
cash flows from operations; and (i) obtain external source of funding in the
immediate and longer term, at a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were  RIBEEZSH 2 BEHE - BREZEBEAESSERANEGELE
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the ~ BHEBRFIHEEZMNEE - WEFHRETSEREER
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of A EHREREXNETEHENSRFHEITRIE MBS e
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion — %tk 5 EHBIEHEF SR - U T AETSHANEREZS
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In 18 - R EBRFERL L 2 EATEERE M EEI - &
addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going %2 T Nl EFEAMBEZEE @ WERNREPHRE
Concern Section, we have determined the matters described below to be the

key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Key Audit Matters
BEREREE

BRELEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BARERSHREERPNMERE

o

66

Valuation and allowance of inventories

FEZ G EEREE

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 5, critical
Jjudgement and estimates in note 6 and its relevant
disclosures in note 20 to the financial statements.

BRI BREN TS FESIHE - W6 EZEH G
KAt KBt E 20 a9 466G # 55 F 18 -

The Group had inventories with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$3,044,000 as at 31 December 2016 after
related allowance of approximately HK$15,813,000 made
against which during the year.

The Group operates in an industry whereby technology
development may significantly affect the valuation of
inventories as its raw-material/product would become
slow-moving or obsolete when products with new technology
emerge.

The Group’s policy on allowance for slow-moving inventories
is to perform individual review on inventory items aged over 1
year. The Group writes down the carrying amount of
inventories to its net realisable value. Allowance for slow-
moving inventories of approximately HK$15,813,000 was
made for the year ended 31 December 2016. The estimation
of net realisable value as well as related allowance made
together with future sales/consumption forecasts involves
significant management judgements.
RZZF—AF+ZA=+—0  EHBRFRNTIRAEREE
BB 4158130008 T BEEEEEREAER
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Our procedure in relation to net realisable value determination as well
as impairment assessment of inventories carried out by the
management included:

— Review the historical ageing of inventory;

- Identifying and assessing aged and obsolete inventory when
attending inventory count;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies of the
management’s calculation on the net realisable value for those
slow-moving stock items; and

— Challenging the appropriateness of the management’s
assumption by performing a sensitivity analysis on possible
future consumption/sales of slow-moving stock items.

EEAWHERERRNIEZ2REFEEEUARTEREN G
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN S

Key Audit Matters
BEREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
HREZSEEERPNAERE

(In)

Valuation of plant and equipment
BERRZEZGE

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 5, critical
Judgement and estimates in note 6 and its relevant
disclosures in note 18 to the financial statements.
FREBREAN T F ERITHE - it 6EZHEF
RAGET R [t 5t 18 694 BT #7 FE 18 o

The Group had plant and machinery with net carrying
amount of approximately HK$2,575,000 as at 31 December
2016. The Group performs periodic review on the expected
recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use, of its plant and machinery
and reduces the carrying amount to its respective
recoverable amount. Following the continuous decline of
turnover, the management concluded that the recoverable
amount of the Group’s plant and machinery was still higher
than their carrying values such that no impairment provision
was required. These conclusions are subject to significant
management judgements, including;

— Estimated resale values, with reference to market price
observed in orderly markets; and

— Estimated utilisation, profits forecast and discount
rates applied to future cash flows.

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H0  ESEEEEREEY
2,575,000 T2 ME RiksE - BEBEHARE KK
%ZE%WW@ﬁﬁbﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ
HZBENREE)#EITE BRI KR ERZE L AE
ARES%E EXEHETRE  BEERE BEH
R E kR AR E e BINSREREmE - FbES
ELRERE - WEERPREBREEASE - 815

- K2RAEFMSTERNGHEEEE X

—  EEHERE  BRENREARFRRSREN
BRI o
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Our procedure in relation to impairment assessment of plant and
machinery carried out by the management included:

- Assessing the appropriateness and challenging the market
prices adopted by the management for benchmarking, and
considering whether the condition of the Group’s plant and
machinery are applicable to those plant and machinery being
traded in the open market;

— Assessing the management’s key assumptions used in the
profit forecast in particular to future revenue stream by basing
on our knowledge of the Group and discount rate used to
extrapolate the cash flow forecasts underlying the value in use
model; and

— Considering the potential impact of reasonably possible
downside changes in these key assumptions.

EERMEERETORE MR EFENEF 81

- MHEEERMERENTENAEN  AETE BF
B kSRR R ERAR ARM S EENRE &
H=s

- REFY BEXRENRE  FHEEERBETANER
%%m@%ﬁﬂ'tﬁ%*XWAﬁ*&%ﬁ%Eﬁﬁ
B AR EERRREREMRANERE R

— EZRUSHERBROHSEFRTTEDNEELE -

67



Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR

Key Audit Matters

MEERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
HREZSEEERPNAERE

()

68

Recoverability of trade receivables
JEW AR S0 AT 4 o] 1

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 5, critical
Judgement and estimates in note 6 and its relevant
disclosures in note 21 to the financial statements.

AL BRAN T L ESBER - i it 6 E ZHEf

RAGFH R E21 BIERE H FEF IR -

The impairment of trade receivables is estimated by the

management through the application of judgment and use of
subjective assumptions which give rise to certain degree of

uncertainty. Due to the significance of trade receivables
(representing 75% of net assets) and the corresponding

uncertainty inherent in such an estimate, we considered this

as a key audit matter.

FEMBRRERE T R B IR B A B A A R RA T ER
RMEEHFL - BER—ERENTHEEN - ARER
BRAEVEAE (15 BEFHER 76%) K% fhFHEA M iE g
TEERZE

EERMLBERE R RBARERER -

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
trade receivables included:

- Assessing the controls over the approval, recording and
monitoring of trade receivables, and evaluating the assumptions
used by the management in determining the recoverability of
trade receivables;

— Reviewed and challenged the information used by management
to determine the impairment provision of each customers by
considering debts collection performance against historical
trends and relationship with the Group over time; and

— Specifically, we reviewed the actual history of slow paying
customers against relevant correspondences for debt collection
and where applicable, respective published financial position for
assessing the recoverability of trade receivables.

EERMERMRSR AT E S ERIZF 84 -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all of the information included in the Company’s annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN S

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

World Link CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO6633

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkEMZEIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-A=t—HLFE

2016 2015
—EB-AEF e
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
Revenue &= 9 51,727 67,098
Cost of sales HER AR (46,125) (61,054)
Gross profit ER 5,602 6,044
Other income EH A 10 2,701 1,084
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEME A R 34 937 -
Selling and distribution costs SHE M SHR AR (1,957) (3,321)
Administrative expenses FTERE (51,366) (20,890)
Loss from operation EEEE (44,083) (17,083)
Finance costs M%ER 11 (10) (424)
Loss before tax BBAIEE 12 (44,093) (17,507)
Income tax expense FriSfiF X 13 (1) (19)
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of ZAT#EE ABLEER
the Company B (44,094) (17,526)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEMEA - R
net of tax: FiIE :
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJREEM B R BmAEE -
Exchange differences on translating foreign HE G INE TGRS R TE 5 24
operations 2,012 548
Total comprehensive income for the year AAREEAEBLEEAZE
attributable to the owners of the Company LNt (42,082) (16,978)
Loss per share (cents) FRER GBI
— Basic — HAK 16 (0.84) (0.34)
— Diluted — 16 (0.84) (0.34)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BN R

At 31 December 2016
RZZE—RF+ZA=+—AH

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E-hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE k&R 18 3,890 4,792
Intangible assets mLEE 19 - 219
3,890 5,011
Current assets RBEE
Inventories EN= 20 3,044 22,734
Trade receivables FEURBR K 21 4,620 5,927
Prepayments and deposits FBNRIERES 22 1,966 5,656
Current tax assets BT IS B 11 52
Bank and cash balances RITRIREEH 23(a) 7,212 32,985
16,853 67,254
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FEATBRIK 24 1,687 11,682
Other payables, deposits received and HAibEARIE - 2EdET£
accrued expenses LIETER 25 6,131 5,895
Amount due to a director JE—HRESFIE 26 683 6,275
Finance lease payables RYE T E R R 27 41 158
Bank overdrafts RITEX 23(b) 50 -
Current tax liabilities BNEARI IR & & 209 -
8,801 24,010
Net current assets REBEEFE 8,052 43,244
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARG 11,942 48,255
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Amount due to a director B —HRESEFIE 26 5,811 -
Finance lease payables RVETRE RN e 27 = 42
5,811 42
NET ASSETS EEFE 6,131 48,213
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital &N 29 1,046 1,046
Reserves ] 31 5,085 47,167
TOTAL EQUITY RS 6,131 48,213

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

21 March 2017.

Tang Wai Ting, Samson

EEE

Director

g%

Mak Hing Keung, Thomas

HEFEN - T—tF=RA -+ —HEERRETE -

EEA

Director

5=
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Consolidgted Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-A=t—HLFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RNTEEAEL
Foreign
currency Retained
Share Statutory Merger translation Option profits/
Share premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  (accumulated Total Total
capital  (note 31(c)f))  (note 31(c)f)  (note 31(c)fii)  (note 31(c)fiv)  (note 31(c)(v)) losses) reserve equity

B EER EERE AHRE AWAERE  BRERE  REEA/
RE (Wsien)  (WEsiem)  (WEsie) (WEstol)  (WEsiw)  (RHER) L1 L i
HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
TAT TET TET TETL TET TER TET TETL TET

At 1 January 2015 W-Z-1%-f-H 1,046 38,747 766 12,400 426 317 11,489 64,145 05,191
Total comprehensive income and FR2ZEANNEER

changes in equity for the year X2 - - - - 548 - (17,526) (16,978) (16,978)
At 81 December 2015 and RZB-TET-A=+-H

1 January 2016 k=Z-7~5-A-8 1,046 38,747 766 12,400 974 317 (6,037) 47,167 48213
Release upon lapse of share option ~ RIERIEX B @B - - - - - (317) 317 - -

Total comprehensive income for EREARAEE

the year - - - - 2,012 - (44,094) (42,082) (42,082)
Changes in equity for the year FRREED - - - - 2,012 (817) (43,777) (42,082) (42,082)
At31 December 2016 W=8-RE+=AZt-8 1,046 38747 766 12400 2,986 = (49.814) 5,085 6,131
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHEZZT—R"F+ZA=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE FHT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEHEESARE
Loss before tax R A& 1B (44,093) (17,507)
Adjustments for: AT EIEEL AL -
Interest income FEHA (13) (13)
Depreciation e 1,760 1,455
Amortisation of intangible assets | A ESH 135 20
Finance costs M ER 10 424
Allowance for inventories FERE 15,813 2,794
Unwinding of discount on non-current liabilities JERE B EBLIREE (1,189) -
Impairment on intangible assets | EERME 579 -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERB A AR (937) -
Operating loss before working capital changes CBEESEERIKEEIE (27,935) (12,827)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/(GEM) 4,095 (10,619)
Decrease in trade receivables JE U BR R 1,671 14,629
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and deposits ~ FET 1B Rk e 4 (38h0) 2,139 (199)
Decrease in trade payables FETBR SR (9,532) (8,063)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, HiEMAFHIE  EWET & K&
deposits received and accrued expenses FEEFERE N, CRd) 936 (1,857)
Cash used in operations KEAES (28,626) (18,932)
Finance lease charges paid EXfmEREER (10) (1)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEREIEFEMNEH 261 1,592
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) paid BRI R EMEH
([¥mBEH)) (12) (595)
Interest paid EXFLE - (403)
Net cash used in operating activities KRS TR S FE (28,387) (18,359)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHRSHRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAME  BE &G (2,010) (812)
Purchases of intangible assets BABTEE (533) (239)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AR 34 3,098 -
Interest received B URLE 13 13
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities wEESAS,(FTH)
REFE 568 (1,038)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-A=t—HLFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®EZEHRESR
Repayments of bank loans EERIRITER = (3,749)
Repayments of finance lease payables EEmERERENE (159) (147)
Advanced from a director EEHBR 2,177 6,275
Import/export loans raised BEEMNE HOEXR - 1,311
Repayments of import/export loans BEE HOER = (1,311)
Net cash from financing activities MEEESIRE F5E 2,018 2,379
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRRSEEWRDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (25,801) (17,018)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEFE R & E) 2 2 (22) (10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FYNRERBEESEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 32,985 50,013
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRESZEEY
END OF YEAR 7,162 32,985
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R REALSZEY DT
Bank and cash balances RITRIREEH 23(a) 7,212 32,985
Bank overdrafts RITEX 23(b) (50) -
7,162 32,985
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P IE AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHEZZT—R"F+ZA=+—HLFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt
company with limited liability under the Company Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 10
September 2013. The address of its registered office is Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is located at B3
YuCan Industrial Park, Lanzhu West Road, Export Processing Zone,
Pingshan New District, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 July 2014 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$44,094,000 (2015: approximately HK$17,526,000)
and net cash outflow from operating activities of approximately
HK$28,387,000 (2015: approximately HK$18,359,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2016, and had decrease in net current assets by
approximately HK$35,192,000 (2015: approximately HK$16,535,000)
with net amount due to a director of approximately HK$6,494,000
(2015: approximately HK$6,275,000) as at 31 December 2016. In
preparing these consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the impact of the current
and anticipated future liquidity of the Group.

The validity of the Group to operate as a going concern is dependent
upon the outcomes of the Group to (i) attain profitable and positive cash
flows from operations; and (i) obtain external source of funding in the
immediate and longer term, at a level sufficient to finance the working
capital requirements of the Group. As further disclosed in note 40(b) to
the financial statements, on 20 March 2017, the Company announced
that the Company and a placing agent (the “Placing Agent”) entered
into a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) on 16 March
2017, pursuant to which the Company agreed to appoint the Placing
Agent to procure placees to subscribe for the 4.0% coupon unlisted
bonds with a term of 12 months, to be issued in tranches by the
Company in an aggregate principal amount up to HK$30,000,000 (the
“Bonds”). Up to the approval date on these financial statements, the
placing of Bonds has yet been completed which creates an uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. Notwithstanding
the above, the directors considered that it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern in preparing these consolidated financial statements.
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GOING CONCERN (continued)
In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the Group has taken the following measures:

- in the event the placing of Bonds was failed to complete, Mr. Kor
Sing Mung, Michael, a director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company has agreed to provide interest-free and unsecured
financial support to the extent of HK$15,000,000 to the Group
for the next twelve months to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due;

- negotiating with bankers for obtaining new banking facilities;

— the directors of the Company have been taking various cost
control measures to tighten the costs of operations;

— the directors of the Company have reviewed the performance of
individual projects and where appropriate, to abandon or dispose
of those non-profitable projects; and

— the Group has been implementing various strategies to enhance
the Group’s revenue.

Based on the cash flow projections of the Group and having taken into
account the available financial resources of the Group together with the
above measures, the directors have concluded that the Group is able
to continue as a going concern and to meet their financial liabilities as
and when they fall due for the next twelve months. Should the Group
be unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to the financial statements to adjust the value of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which in collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual period beginning on 1
January 2016. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position of the
Group for the current and prior years have been prepared and
presented.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2016. These new and revised HKFRSs
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of
deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment:
Classification and
measurement of share-based
payment transactions?

HKFRS 16 Leases Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined. Early adoption is permitted.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} &5 2016

4.

BRANVETRT RSB B R BREER

(a)

(b)

FE RS ET R RS RT B R MR E R
RAFE  AEEERANR _ZE—RF—-H—
B Fe 2 & I B R AR A #a] A8 1E
RIABMBIRELED - ZEHRYAEEER
BREEERGIDESEYS Ry v D Py
WESRTE -

CHEMENRERZHITREBETESR
Bt 3 3% 5 2
FEBYERZEATAEEMEHRR T
—NE- A BB ZMERFEREERZ T R
BIEFTEBMBREER - EREREHRF
B2 HTE] R ERT BB MBS ERBIEIAT
BIH -

BRGHER MEX  KEHE
FTRAERT
BRGHER M : ERARREAX

F125RAEF] ELMETRAEE'

BRUBREED SRTA?

oL
BRUBREED REEP AR E?
E15%

BARBREER WARG BERR : ARG
F2RABE] BEBNFR 0D E

RitE?

BRUBREED aEs

E165

BRUBREED BEFHEBE AR
F10NRERGH  AELEZALEY
RRIEBKMETT  FABEC

! NZB—tF A B2 RABRNFESR
A ETREEM -

2 N-FE-—N\F-A—BHZRFABRNFES
AR ETRFEM -

¢ REE-NAF-—A—BRz&RBNFESR
LR - ETREEM -

‘ WEERBR 2 RAROFERRER - &
TiRFEM -

79



Notes to the Financial Statements

P IE AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—T—

£ —=

4,

80

NE+ZA=T—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards to be in the
period of initial application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. As the Group has
not completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified
in due course.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the classification of
financial assets which is based on cash flow characteristics and
the business model in which the asset is held. A debt instrument
that is held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows and that has contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding is measured at amortised cost. A debt instrument
that is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting the contractual cash flows and selling the
instruments and that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding is
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. All
other debt instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Equity instruments are generally measured at fair value
through profit or loss. However, an entity may make an
irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities are carried forward largely unchanged from
HKAS 39 except that when the fair value option is applied
changes in fair value attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognised in other comprehensive income unless this
creates an accounting mismatch.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment model to
replace the incurred-loss impairment model in HKAS 39. It is no
longer necessary for a credit event or impairment trigger to have
occurred before impairment losses are recognised. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, an entity will generally recognise
12-month expected credit losses. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, an entity will
recognise lifetime expected credit losses. The standard includes
a simplified approach for trade receivables to always recognise
the lifetime expected credit losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are carried forward
largely unchanged.

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge accounting
requirements in HKAS 39 to align hedge accounting more closely
with risk management and establish a more principle based
approach.

The new expected credit loss impairment model in HKFRS 9 may
result in the earlier recognition of impairment losses on the
Group’s trade receivables and other financial assets. The Group
is unable to quantity the impact until a more detailed assessment
is completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards and
interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity recognises
revenue to depict the transfer of goods and services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to become entitled in exchange for those
goods and services.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with the core
principle by applying a 5-step model:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive disclosure
requirements relating to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS
15 on the consolidated financial statements and unable to
estimate the impact of the new standard on the consolidated
financial statements until a more detailed analysis is completed.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations.
The new standard introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS
17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to
classify leases as operating or finance leases.

The Group’s offices, factory premises, and staff quarters leases
are currently classified as operating leases and the lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise and
measure a liability at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-use
asset for these leases. The interest expense on the lease liability
and depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in
profit or loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and
the timing of expense recognition will also be impacted as a
result.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
As disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for its offices, factory premises and staff quarters
amounted to a total of approximately HK$4,423,000 as at 31
December 2016. The Group will need to perform a more detailed
assessment in order to determine the new assets and liabilities
arising from these operating leases commitments after taking into
account the transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 6.

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

(@) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting year as that of the Company.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains and continue to be consolidated until the date when such
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary determined on the date
when control is lost; and (ii) the carrying amount of the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated amounts in other comprehensive income.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses and
profits and losses are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses. The
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable
amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of a subsidiary are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in the
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less accumulated
impairment losses from the date on which they are available for
use and after taking account their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
residual value and useful lives are as follows:
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Residual value Useful lives

FerEE A {5 A 5

Furniture and fixture RMREE 0-10% 5 years
Leasehold improvement HEWHEE 0% 4 years F
Motor vehicle HE 0-10% 5 years F
Mould HA 0-10% 5 years &
Office equipment FENS'S 0-10% 5 years &
Plant and machinery S N i 2s 0-10% 10 years fF

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(C)

(€

U]

(@)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
whether finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Cost of acquired application software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying software not
exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable. Finance
charges which represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as owned
assets over the shorter of the lease term and their estimated
useful lives.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research and development activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

U]

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs comprise all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised in the profit or loss in the period of write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories recognised as an increment in the amount of
inventories and recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and other receivables

Loans and other receivables including trade and other receivables
and bank and cash balances are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are not held for trading are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except where receivables are
interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the
effect of discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition over the period to maturity. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss. An
allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group wil
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount
of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

()

(P)

(@

920

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of manufactured products and trading
of electronic accessories are recognised on the transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and the
title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(ii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others who providing similar services.

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market-
based vesting conditions, with a corresponding increase in a
reserve within equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(t)

(u)

92

Borrowing costs (continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

v)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(0} has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

HE—_T—
5.
(v)
(w)
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U

(i)

(i

)

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the

carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except

inventories and receivables to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If

any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is

estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment

loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount

of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable

amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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RNETZA=+T-RHIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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RNETZA=T-HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

Going concern basis

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which is dependent upon the outcomes of the
Group to (i) attain profitable and positive cash flows from operations;
and (i) obtain external source of funding in the immediate and longer
term, at a level sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of
the Group. Details are explained in note 2 to financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(@) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charges where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and therefore depreciation in the future
periods.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2016 were approximately HK$3,890,000 (2015:
HK$4,792,000).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

®)

©

(@)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories of approximately
HK$15,813,000 (2015: HK$2,794,000) was made for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC EIT.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.
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6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)  Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less cost of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
price less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. If there is
no binding sale agreement or active market for that an asset,
management will refer to the best information available to reflect
the amount that an entity could obtain at the end of the reporting
period. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group'’s financial performance.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally
denominated in either HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”). The Group
has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency such as United
States dollars (‘US$”). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. Set
out below the sensitivity analysis the Group’s foreign currency
risk.

B EBREE ()

(a)

SN LR
AEBEERODEERIZUBTRARKE
(TAR¥DEHE - AEEEERE TINERR -
TIHREETEBR S  BEMBBEUAKE
e B AN B (T ([R5 ]))aHE
REEBFERINER S - BERBEHIES
BENBER - ARE R T EEEINER R
RiaR AR EREEEIMEAINERRE - T
REHIAREE 2 NS B SR E AT

Functional (Decrease)/

currency increase in

strengthened/ consolidated

(weakened) by loss after tax

IhEeE W FREBEEER

FE (B 1) (B2 /%

HK$°000

FTHET

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-XR"E+-A=Z+—HLEE 5%/(5%) (182)/182Mete)
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_Z—RAF+-_A=1+—HLFE 5%/(5%) (451)/451 (i)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
denominated in US$.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits and bank
balances included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets.

The Group has significant concentrations of credit risk as 73%
(2015: 69%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from one
(2015: one) customer. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the credit risk exposure in relation to this customer is
not significant as this customer is a company listed on Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation with positive financial position for
whom there was no recent history of default. In addition, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(©

(C)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit quality of the counterparties in respect of deposits and
other receivables is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Given the
constant repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that
the risk of default by these counterparties is low.

The credit risk on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and large state-controlled
banks in the PRC.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s finance lease payables bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate
risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank overdrafts. These bank deposits and bank
overdrafts bear interests at floating rates varied with the then
prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of
reporting period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of each reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7. HMERERER(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) (d REBESER(E)
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based on AEERBEAERAARURREREAENEEE
contractual undiscounted cash flow is as follows: BRI HRERIITOT -
Less than Between Between
On demand 1year 1and2years 2and5years
RER —EHTF —-ZEWE MERLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TR
At 31 December 2016 —E-AE+=ZA=t+-H
Trade payables FEfTBRIR - 1,687 - -
Other payables, deposits received and HWE 3B EMEIE R
accrued expenses e & - 6,131 - -
Amount due to a director [Eff— % EEHE 683 - = 7,000
Finance lease payables BEHERMNRE = 42 - -
Bank overdrafts RITER 50 - - -
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-H5&+-A=+-H
Trade payables B - 11,682 - -
Other payables, deposits received and HiERZE  BlETe R
accrued expenses fE:HER - 5,895 - -
Amount due to a director EN—BEEHE 6,275 - - -
Finance lease payables BEMERMNTE - 167 43 -
Categories of financial instruments at 31 December () R+T=—B=+—HZ&®MIAHER
2016 2015
—RE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Financial assets: SREE:
Loans and receivables (including cash and BER M EWFE (BIERe K
cash equivalents) ReEEY) 13,203 39,965
Financial liabilities: SRIEE:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs REEKAYR 2 2 RAE 9,888 19,438
Fair values n 2ARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and TEENEREERS E B EMREE (4
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of SRR RARM) EEX B AAERE °
financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. oIER
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as KBNS ST EUCR B SRR T 5 AR EARIE R
those described in note 5 to the financial statements. —H o
Operating segment information BEFHER
The Group is engaged in the single type business of research, AEEEE —HAER - AEFRENITE - &8
development, manufacturing and trading of electronic devices. k&S - Al - MMEZHELEDHLER -
Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.
Geographical information i & & R
Non-current assets of the Group is presented based on the AEEIERBDEERBUTHIBLERY
geographical location as follows:
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BE 1,250 927
PRC i 2,640 4,084
3,890 5,011
Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment and ERHEEREYE HMERSEBLEREE -
intangible assets.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is BEAERRBEIIIPEEUZEAEEIBE A T AL
presented based on the geographical location as follows: B2%
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 23,007 9,465
United Kingdom HE 7,566 8,919
The Netherlands e 7,162 11,270
Germany = 7,026 -
Others HAth 6,966 37,444
51,727 67,098
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7 EER (&)

FHRIREFNENR
REREEEEBBAEERE10%R 5 AEE
REEF(ZF—HF  MB)MFMT :

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.
Information about major customers
The Group’s customer base included five (2015: four) customers with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years

is set out as below:

2016 2015
—E—REF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Customer A (note i) BEAKIED) 7,800 N/AiE A
Customer B ZFB 7,566 8,919
Customer C (note i) B C(Hii) 7,176 N/A TN
Customer D ZFD 7,162 11,270
Customer E ZFE 7,026 7,851
Customer F (note iif) BEF (K aFii) N/A 38 H 16,847
36,730 44,887

[0} Customer A did not contribute over 10% of the total turnover of the Group (i) HE-Z-—A5+-A=1T—HHE TFAERZ

for the year ended 31 December 2015. WA AR E 2 & EETEIB10% ©
(ii) Customer C did not contribute over 10% of the total turnover of the Group (ii) HE-Z-—AF+-A=+—HEE BFCHkZ

for the year ended 31 December 2015.

(iii) Customer F did not contribute over 10% of the total turnover of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

WAEREE 2 BEKBETBIB10%

(iil HE-Z-—R"F+-A=+—HFE BFFERZ
WA AR BEERBIRIB10% ©

9. REVENUE 9. &
Revenue represents the invoiced values of goods sold, after allowances WatERRRERITEETEEMNBEREEE - A%
for returns and discounts. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the BEFAMBEAITIT -

year is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Sales of manufactured products SHE 2 E M 28,721 56,150
Sales on trading of electronic products, BFEmM  REREMH
accessories and raw materials B 5% 23,006 10,948
51,727 67,098
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10. OTHER INCOME 10. HA
2016 2015
—E—REF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gain on sales of scrap SHERE MU A 42 68
Government subsidies R HEEh = 465
Interest income B A 13 13
Unwinding of discount on non-current liabilities BB EE 1,189 -
Others Eh 1,457 538
2,701 1,084

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. HBEA
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—hHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans RITERFE = 133
Interest on bank overdrafts RITBELZFE = 161
Interest on import/export loans i HOERFE - 109
Finance lease charges REHEER 10 21
10 424
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12. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

12. BRBATEE

AEERTA BB AR (GEA) AT HEES

following: iR -
2016 2015
—E—KREF —Z—1%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Wit FET FAT
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 19) & E# Y (Hf5F19) 135 20
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE
equipment (note 18) (B 18) (a) 1,760 1,455
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B TR (B35 % EE ) (o)
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — 5% - TEALROER 17,280 13,482
— Retirement benefits scheme — RRREFIET B R
contributions 1,222 1,029
18,502 14,511
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAE 46,125 61,054
Foreign exchange loss SN E5 18 2,896 1,444
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (note 34) &M B A a1z (f7E34) (937) -
Operating lease charges on premises MEKLSHEER (© 4,151 3,270
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR 37 A 674 527
Impairment on intangible assets (note 19) & FE A (M3 19) 579 -
Allowance for inventories FEEE 15,813 2,794
Notes: HiaE -
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of approximately (@ HE-Z-XRE+A=1+—HILFE V¥ HE

HK$414,000 (2015: HK$433,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016

is included in cost of sales.

(b) Staff costs of approximately HK$1,511,000 (2015: HK$4,325,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is included in cost of sales.

(c) Operating lease charges of approximately HK$502,000 (2015:
HK$541,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016 is included in cost of

sales.
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BIT)  EAHERA o

(0) HE-T—A"F+ZA=+—BLLFE BIKEND
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-A=t—HLFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FrE®iREx
2016 2015
—E—REF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERREIE — EBFEH
Provision for the year FREE = -
Over-provision in prior years RBEFEBERE = @)
- )
Current tax — PRC EIT BNEARITE — R ZEFTIS R
Provision for the year FRNEE 1 -
Under-provision in prior years RBEFERETE - 21
1 21
Total tax charge for the year FARIAMZ R 1 19

The tax rate applicable to the Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries were
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) during the year. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax is required as the Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries have no
assessable profit for the year (2015: Nil).

On 24 December 2014, Central Pacific Int Technology Limited (“CPIT”),
a Company’s PRC subsidiary, was granted status of High and New
Technology Enterprise and entitled to preferential EIT rate of 15% from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016 provided CPIT continues
engaged in activities which meet the criteria of being a High and New
Technology Enterprise pursuant to No. 28 of the EIT Law of the PRC
(“EIT Law”) and No. 93 of the Regulation on the Implementation of the
EIT Law promulgated by the State Council of the PRC.

The tax rate applicable to the Group’s other PRC subsidiaries were
25% (2015: 25%) during the year.

No PRC EIT is required for the year ended 31 December 2015 as the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries did not generate any assessable profit for
that year.

RER - AEEFENBRRBEANTEA16.5%(=
T—HF 16.5%) c ARAEEEEMBRRINE
N EERTES  WBBAEBNEGHATIREE
(ZZ—hF &\ -

RZZ-—OF+=A=+WA  PEMNEFCORID
ERAR(THEMNETF] RABMDENEAR)E
HMEFRREEER AT —NF—A—HE=Z
—ARFETZAZ+ - RERRISRNEELEMS
HEGMB S - ATRATEMNE FEBILEN
AR EBEBERMGE D ERRISTE(RERS
Bk ) H 28GR EMEBOEEMEIEDISE 93 KN D
M RRRERES o

RER - RSB H b BT E A BE A R R A 25%
(ZZ—F%F :25%) °

HAREETRNBEARNEE_T—AF+-A
=+ RIEFERBELEARRTEN - RBEAR
ZFE R B EMSH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHEZZT—R"F+ZA=+—HLFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13. FISHim (&)
The recongiliation between the income tax expense and the product of ISR A ER B RERTRUAEBMEEFEH
loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of the ERHERMNT -

Group is as follows:

2016 2015

—E-RF —Z-1%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Loss before tax BRA AT 18 (44,093) (17,507)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% BAMRE16.5% (ZE—RF :

(2015: 16.5%) 16.5%) st E B BIE (7,275) (2,889
Tax effect of preferential tax rate HREBRZHRGEZE 2,148 754
Tax effect of income that is not taxable AR AR E (351) (39)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible TEMRAXOREEE 5,938 1,672
Tax effect of temporary differences RIERE S ZREM S &

not recognised (94) (52)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHIEEENFHEZE 1,497 1,216
Under-provision in prior years RBAFEREBTRE = 19
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries WEARTRABEENTE (1,862) (662)
Income tax expense for the year FRATSHAX 1 19
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEZZT—R"F+ZA=+—HLFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEREEHNS
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ ESHMe
The emoluments paid or payable in respect a person’s services ENSEMREERARSENBARERZ
as a director, whether of the Company, or its subsidiaries BFERERBZALZBE0T -
undertaking were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_Z—AE+-A=+—HLEE

108

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
RAKEA
g4 FEREHN TR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TERT THET
Executive directors YiTES
Tang Wai Ting, Samson HEE - 240 12 252
Kor Sing Mung, Michael (i) Kor Sing Mung, Michael (i) - 212 - 212
Leung Wai Hing (i REE i) - 356 13 369
Mak Hing Keung BERE - 360 18 378
Liu Liang (i) 2 (i) = 4 - 4
Non-executive directors FHTES
Kor Sing Mung, Michael (i) Kor Sing Mung, Michael (i) 162 - - 162
Li Ying *E 300 - - 300
Tse Yee Hin, Tony HFE 300 - - 300
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Chan Sze Man PR S8 120 - - 120
Lee Wai Hung ZRI 120 - - 120
Ng Ka Chung RS 120 - - 120
Eugenia Yang B 120 - = 120
1,242 1,172 43 2,457
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHEZZT—R"F+ZA=+—HLFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEREEME (E)
(continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@ ESM<E(HE)
The emoluments paid or payable in respect a person’s services ENRESREEARARSENBARERZ
as a director, whether of the Company, or its subsidiaries BFERERBZALZBE0T -
undertaking were as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHE_Z—AF+-_A=+—HLEFE
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
RIKNER
EH HERRE BELGE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THER
Executive directors HITES
Tang Wai Ting, Samson HiEE - 240 13 253
Leung Wai Hing (i) REE (i) - 294 11 305
Mak Hing Keung (iv) EEE (v) - 216 il 227
Chan Kai Hei (v) BEEEE (1) - 140 8 148
Chiu Chen Hsun (vi) EBRCE (vi) 48 - - 48
Non-executive directors FHTES
Li Ying ZE 300 - - 300
Tse Yee Hin, Tony HFH 300 = - 300
Independent non-executive directors BUKHTES
Chan Sze Man BREF 8 120 - - 120
Lee Wai Hung TR 120 - - 120
Ng Ka Chung ERE 120 - - 120
Eugenia Yang BT 120 - - 120
1,128 890 43 2,061
Notes: BaE -

(i)

(i)

Appointed on 1 March 2016 as a non-executive director and
redesigned to an executive director of the Company on 15
September 2016.

Appointed on 26 May 2015 and resigned on 15 September 2016.
Salaries and allowances of approximately HK$181,000 and
HK$117,000 paid to Ms. Leung Wai Hing before her appointment
and after her resignation as a director had not been included in the
2015 and 2016 emolument analysis respectively.

Appointed on 21 December 2016

(iv) Appointed on 26 May 2015
(v) Resigned on 31 July 2015
(vi) Resigned on 26 May 2015
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HE—_T—

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

110

RNETZA=T-HIEFE

(continued)

(@

(b)

(c)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included nil (2015: 2) director(s) whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the
remaining 5 (2015: 3) individuals are set out below respectively:

(a)

(b)

14. EERESHS (E)

EEMe ()
RER - BEEENEXRAEREITAMSH
2o

AuGESHMAL

REXN AEELUSGSFMALEETSR
—T-hF2R)EF AWM LAZ27
DT RER - Hp62(Z T —0%F :3%)
EARBE D BIEIAT

2016 2015

—E—REF —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

Basic salaries and allowances HEARH & KERY 2,696 1,272
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RUREF T B3R 83 54
2,779 1,326

There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any of the
directors and the five highest paid individuals during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HE_Z—R"Er-_Z-—HF+-A=+—8
IHFEE  TEATAEESRARAESHMAL
XA Sk AR BYIBIEAL ©
BRTHIRENENS

Number of individuals

AH
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ 7T 5 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

Senior management’s emoluments

Senior management represents the executive directors. The
emoluments paid or payable to senior management during the
year have been set out in the analysis presented above.

(c)

RER  AEBERERENESFLRSHMA
TXAHERBE RN sk iR A R E IR Ry 52
Y SIE BRI -

BREEASNHE
SEEBASERTES -NFR ENRE
Ny=afEREsMeEH8R 2N
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_T—

15.

16.

17.

RNETZA=+T-RHIEFE

DIVIDEND
No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company during the year
(2015: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

(@) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$44,094,000 (2015:
HK$17,526,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,227,800,000 (2015: 5,227,800,000) in issue during
the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share
The effects of the Company’s potential ordinary shares in respect
of the outstanding share options are anti-dilutive for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 (2015:
HK$1,500) per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The only
obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension
scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined contribution
plan available at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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15.

16.

17.

RE
ARABRFARERNLERAEMBE(ZF—0F
) -

BREE

(a) BREXEE
ANREVEE ARG EREREEHIREFAAR
R AEE AFE(LE1E4) 44,094,000 70 (=%
— R 17,526,000 ) R EFERE T LB
J8 0 # SF 5 245,227,800,000 ( = F — F 4 ¢
5,227,800,000) 5+ %

(b) EBREFEHER
ARTARBE-B—~ER-F—AFT=A
=+ AL 2R AT R 2
BRZYBAREEYE -

RABEREE

AEBERBEEBRGIELBSTRGIAETEMBES
BitEBEFERBIEAED B ([RESFHE) - &
SEUBESHBZHRLHERTENS%THE
HGELEEFARSLEA1500ET(ZT—HF
1,50078 7T ) & fE A 58 18 & 7 B K0S 2 3R 55 B X 18

o

\

AR SR B B AR SZ O P B A BV E B 2003 75 TR
BIFR PR REARDEE - ZEWB R BART RENK
TERIBREEELNHERTENE TAN LM - A
RERERIREES « 0 HBRTREAEZ SIS
RAFIBERE RATRKEERAEFNEE - %5
B 2 B AR RS EH Bl M ME— BERENEHEIR
THRERHS

R-E—RNEFR_E—RAF+_A=+—HUE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XR"F+_A=+—HLFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W¥ -  BMERZE
Furniture Leasehold Motor Office Plant and
and fixture improvement vehicle Mould  equipment  machinery Total
BRREE HENERE "E BE BARE BERKS @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TARL TR TR TR TR TR

Cost B

At 1 January 2015 RZE-R%F—-f—H 34 - 1,161 1,280 422 23,549 26,446
Additions NE 10 392 - - 139 271 812
Exchange realignment [ 5 2% - - (10) - ©) (566) (585)

At31December2015and ~ RZZE—RE+=A

1 January 2016 Z+-BR-Z-RF
—A—H 44 392 1,151 1,280 552 23,254 26,673
Additions NE 14 879 - 27 1,090 - 2,010
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAR 6) - - - (1,017) - (1,023)
Exchange realignment fE 53 AR - - (16) - (16) (964) (996)
At 31 December 2016 i e
+-A=1t-H 52 1,271 1,135 1,307 609 22,290 26,664

Accumulated depreciation Z3iti7E

At 1 January 2015 RZZE-HF—-f—H 34 - 736 1,280 357 18,427 20,834
Charge for the year ENFR 1 16 182 - 19 1,237 1,455
Exchange realignment EHHE - - ®) - Y (393) (408)

At31December 2015and ~ RAZE-RFE+_f

1 January 2016 =t+-BR-Z-—1F

—A—H 35 16 910 1,280 369 19,271 21,881
Charge for the year FREY 4 247 177 2 157 1,173 1,760
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - (113) - (113
Exchange realignment EHAR - - (13) - (12) (729) (754)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE

+-F=t-H 39 263 1,074 1,282 401 19,715 22,774
Carrying amount EEWE
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RF

+-A=+—-H 13 1,008 61 25 208 2,575 3,890
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%

+-A=+— 9 376 241 - 183 3,983 4,792
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of a motor vehicle held RZZE—ARF+ZA=+—08 FXEEREREHE
by the Group under finance lease amounted to approximately HAERN—/3ENRAEL40,0008C(ZE—RF :
HK$40,000 (2015: HK$198,000). 198,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHEZZT—R"F+ZA=+—HLFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. |EE
HK$’000
FERT
Cost 5%
Additions, at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 ANBERZE—AF+=-A=+—H
kZT—XF—HF—H 239
Additions NE 533
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBARR (49)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—8H 723
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses BT EBERREREE
Charge for the year, at 31 December 2015 and FARYS RN-ZE—AF+-_A=1+—H
1 January 2016 EZ_ZT—X¥—H—H 20
Charge for the year FAMXZ 135
Impairment loss BE R 579
Disposals of subsidiaries HEEA A (11
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=-A=+—H 723
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H -
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=ZRA=+—H 219

Intangible assets represent software applications acquired from
independent third parties. Such intangible assets have definite useful
lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

During the year, the Group carried out review of the recoverable amount
of its intangible assets, having regard to the market conditions of the
Group’s products. The review led to the recognition of an impairment
loss of approximately HK$579,000 for software applications have been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of intangible assets
has been determined on the basis of their value in use using discounted
cash flow method. The discount rate used was 6.4%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—R"F+-A=t—HLFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. F&
2016 2015
—E—XREF —Z-1%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials R 1,419 13,150
Work-in progress wES 336 5,285
Finished goods and merchandise Bk N 7 A 1,289 4,299
3,044 22,734
At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories were stated at RMEER - AEB 2 FETIRKATIEE o
cost.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, no reversal of allowance for HE_Z—R"F+A=1+T—HILEE  HERERF
inventories arose from sales of obsolete inventories (2015: Nil). EMEELETERERR(ZE—RF - E)-
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. FEEWERR
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Trade receivables JEUR BR 3R 4,620 5,927
The Group’s trading terms with its major customers is either on credit AEFHAEFERTFENE FIERAKRIESR AN E R
or to provide the Group with irrecoverable letters of credit issued by A B R AT EYIRIT AT 1T HARR /2 30 B A9 AT U
reputable banks, with terms within 30 days (2015: 30 days). The Group BzA#E(ZE—RF :308) c REEBKE KE
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. BREMREETRRES - aERBESERS
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors. B -
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the REEREZEA R ERNREBRRONBRE D TAT
invoice date is as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZT—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0-30 days 0&30H 591 621
31-60 days 31260H 263 1,382
61-90 days 61290 H 123 153
Over 90 days 0B £ 3,643 3,771
4,620 5,927
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHEZZT—R"F+ZA=+—HLFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
HK$4,121,000 (2015: HK$5,306,000) were past due but not impaired.
These trade receivables related to customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables,
based on due date, is as follows:

PE Uk BR X ()
HEZZ—XR"F+=ZA=+—8" BEEZRY
4,121,000 T (ZZF— R4 : 5,306,000/E7T) 2B H
BARBE %5 W AR KT B B ARS8 B P
B o HEREWERFIZE B AGTOERR ST T ¢

2016 2015

—E—REF —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

0-30 days 0%30H 92 1,382
31-60 days 312 60H 263 153
Over 60 days 60 BHIA £ 3,766 3,771
4,121 5,306

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of
reporting period are denominated in the following currencies:

A E R E AR USRS REEA T HI '
E:

2016 2015
—E-XKF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
HKS BT 835 15
us$ ET 3,698 5,912
RMB AR 87 -
4,620 5,927

22. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 22, BEARERES
2016 2015
—E-XKF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Deposits e 1,371 1,053
Prepayments SEENE Q] 595 4,503
1,966 5,556

Neither of the above assets is past due nor impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.
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HE_Z—R"F+-A=t—HLFE

23. BANK AND CASH BALANCES/BANK OVERDRAFTS 23. SR{TRBE&&E BITEX

(@) Bank and cash balances (a) H|ITRBEEEH
At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances of RB|EBRR - ARBRTERSERIETIE
the Group are denominated in the following currencies: ¥EHE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HKS$ BT 4,736 18,786
RMB AR 1,694 5,944
Us$ ET 782 8,255
7,212 32,985
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the ARB Y AINK AR A REMBINES
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration MG 2 A5 TE ~ &5 BB [2 5 BE SNE (SR BIARPR o
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.
(b) Bank overdrafts b) RITEX
2016 2015
—E-—RF —Z-1F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank overdrafts BITBEX 50 -
The bank overdrafts of the Group is arranged at floating rates, RERTERIRLAGT - AfSAAGE
thus exposing the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The SRS RER - AEBERERSTES
average interest rate of the Group’s bank overdrafts during the S ¥ 4 R R B13.85%( — F — T 4E
year is 13.85% (2015: 11.42%) per annum. 11.42%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHEZZT—R"F+ZA=+—HLFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the invoice
date is as follows:

24. BENERR

REEIZEE A M E RN RRARED T T -

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—hF

HK$°000 HK$000

FHET FrET

0-30 days 0E30H 1,118 2,743
31-60 days 31Z60H 7 4,332
61-90 days 61Z090H 8 640
Over 90 days 90 B LAk 554 3,967
1,687 11,682

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables at the end of

AEENHRERRO BN RKNREEA TIIEREE

reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: 8 :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 21 317
RMB AR 451 7,198
uss$ ESW 1,215 4,167
1,687 11,682

25. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

25, HENFNE BRITEREFER

2016 2015
—E-XKF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Deposits received from customers BRI & 1,638 1,378
Accruals for operations CEESTIEE 3,007 1,646
Accruals for staff costs FEEtB IR AR 1,467 2,768
Others HAith 19 103
6,131 5,895
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HE—_T—

26.

27.

118

RNETZA=T-HIEFE

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

As of 31 December 2016, amount due to a director of approximately
HK$683,000 (2015: HK$6,275,000) is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The remaining balance of HK$7,000,000
(2015:Nil) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 31 December
2019. Accordingly, it is classified as non-current liabilities as at 31
December 2016 and is carried at amortised cost calculated at an
effective interest rate of 6.4% per annum.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above amount
due to a director constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules but fully exempted
pursuant to Rule 20.88 of the GEM Listing Rules as the Company has
fulfilled the relevant requirements.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

Minimum lease payments

26.

27.

BN —REERE
BE_ZT-—R"Ft-A=1t—H0 EN—REZEHE
#7683,000% 7T (ZZF — 1% : 6,275,000/ 7T ) /& &
HR - 28 RARERIEE 27,000,008 T(=F
—hEFECE)NERERASEER . REER-F
—NETZA=1+—REE Bt ERBAR_-F
—ARETZA=T - ARZERB B ERRBRFN X
6.4% 5t H BV B SRR DB o

AABEERS Ll ENESFIRBKAIZER LM
RRE0EMATNHAMERS - EREAIEIR
EmHRIZE20.88 Ik EEEH D AARRBAEHTA
HERAME

BMEHERMNRE

Present value of minimum
lease payments

BIEREENRE BEAERERE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—hF —E-XRF —F—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET FHT FET
Within one year —FR 42 167 4 158
In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ —EF R F(BREEEMF) - 43 - 42
42 210 41 200
Less: Future finance charges W RKBEER (1) (10) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations T4 & /&R E 41 200 41 200
Less: Amount due for settlement  J&{ - 121E A W2 EA& %8
within 12 months (shown DA 452
under current liabilities) (REaE®E N ER) (41) (158)
Amount due for settlement after 12{A A EEIBe U HEER
12 months = 49

The Group had leased a motor vehicle under finance lease. The average
lease term is 5 years. During the year, the average effective borrowing
rate was 7.42% (2015: 7.42%). Interest rate is fixed at the contract date
and thus exposes the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The lease is
on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rental payments. The finance lease payables are
denominated in HKS.

The finance lease payables of the Group are secured by the lessor’s
title to the leased assets.

AEEREREEEEA W= FHHEB RS
FoRER FHERBEERT.42%(ZF—HF
7.42%) - MERZARABEELEAMS A EE@mE
AREMNXRER - BEREFEEEELRER LA
BN L EMRH - BRERERMFRAE TR

B~

AEEREEERNFAREEALEEEENERE
AR -
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28.

NETZA=+—HILEE
DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$16,878,000 (2015: HK$8,838,000) that are available
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
HK$9,047,000 (2015: HK$4,522,000) that will expire in five years from
2017 to 2021. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, a withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
deferred taxation in respect of these taxable temporary differences had
been recognised as the Group’s PRC subsidiaries were loss making
during the years.

Up to 31 December 2014, deferred taxation has not been provided in
the financial statements in respect of temporary difference attributable
to profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiary since 1 January 2008
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} &5 2016

28.

ELED IR

REREEIAR - ANEE KRB AL 16,878,000 7T (=
T— A4 8,838,000 7T H i 18 518 A 1R 85 R 5k
FERBUET - RREEBYERRECHELE )
PR 28 F SR AT FERIME © 5 AR RER MBI
E51875 9,047,000/ 8L (=ZZF — A : 4,522,000/57T)
BiE BR-E—tEE T —FRFEHER - &
bR B E P AL PR HA A EE o

RETECEMSHRE  ARBEMBATR_FZEN
F—A—BARRIE 8 TS RE I SRS -
R_FE-ARNFER-_F-—AF+_A=1t—H L&}
ERVE R ZRERBLERIR - ARAKENHE
@R BN ENERSEE

RZZE—MOF+—A=+—0  stAxEETEHEL
ABE-ZEEN\F—A—BRRREEFIEG TR =R
TR A EEHRIRAE IR - Ty R AR R E R
IR ERBELNERRESEHAETERA R
K[ -
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

29. A

Number of ordinary shares

ZREREE
at HK$0.01 at HK$0.001 at HK$0.0002
per share per share per share HK$’000
SREE SREE SREE
0.018 T 0.001& 7T 0.0002& 7T FHET
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2015 RNZE—hFE—A—H 1,000,000,000 - - 10,000
Effects of shares subdivision P48 2 22 ([iF (@)
(note (a)) (1,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000 - -
Effects of shares subdivision P 148 2 222 (Hi7F (b))
(note (b)) ~ (10,000,000,000)  50,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2015, R-E-HF+=A
1 January 2016 and =+-H -ZB-XE
31 December 2016 —B—HRZE-RF
+=A=+—H - - 50,000,000,000 10,000
Issued BT
At 1 January 2015 n-Z—HF—A—H 104,556,000 - - 1,046
Effects of shares subdivision Bipirie &2
(note (a)) (K13t (@) (104,556,000)  1,045,560,000 - -
Effects of shares subdivision RSN a2
(note (b)) (Btit b)) - (1,045,560,000) 5,227,800,000 -
At 31 December 2015, R=-ZB-HF+=A
1 January 2016 and =t—-H0 ZB-KE
31 December 2016 —B—BR=E-RE¥
+=A=+—H - - 5,227,800,000 1,046
Notes: Mfat -
(@) Pursuant to the share subdivision on 8 January 2015, the authorised share (@ BRER-_ZF-RF—ANBZRHFR KRR ZE

120

capital of the Company of HK$10,000,000 was divided into
10,000,000,000 subdivided shares, of which 1,045,560,000 subdivided
shares was issued and fully paid. After the shares subdivision, each of the
existing issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company was subdivided into 10 subdivided shares of
par value of HK$0.001 each.

Pursuant to the share subdivision on 9 October 2015, the authorised
share capital of the Company of HK$10,000,000 was divided into
50,000,000,000 subdivided shares, of which 5,227,800,000 subdivided
shares was issued and fully paid. After the shares subdivision, each of the
existing issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.001 each in the
share capital of the Company was subdivided into 5 subdivided shares of
par value of HK$0.0002 each.

JE % 75 10,000,000 7T #7 4 4 10,000,000,000 A% #*
4RRE {5 - B A 1,045,560,000 % AEEITRER Y
TR - BRDIFME  ARARATREREER
0.01 BT 2 HABBITRABITRMEFMAI10K
FIREE 0.001 BT 2 FrRARR (D °

BERZZT—RFTANBZRHIFME  ARE2%
JE % 45 10,000,000 % 7T #f 48 /% 50,000,000,000 A% #*
ARG 15 - & A 5,227,800,000 % AR BT REE 2
TR - ROFAE  RXARRAFEREEBER
0.001 L2 A BT RARBITRHEFRMA5K
S E{E 0.0002 8 7T 2 IFARALLD ©
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29.

RNETZA=+T-RHIEFE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group comprises all
components of shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share
registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing the non-public
float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit from
the date of the Listing. As of 31 December 2016, 57% (2015: 33%) of
the shares were in public hands.
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AR EE R A AN B R ARMA R R E 08T
RE BB REAEHT AR EREAER -
AR E AR BRI RN A AR TLE -

REEEBE BE AR R EGEE AR R R M
KEREERER AEERKSBBINRE - BT
AR AR RE (Bl LA R AT RI(ETS - IERIB A EBI T
EEEUNRDEBRESH X TEEEEEARERE - RE
BT RFERZZFE-AF+A=T—HLEFE"
BEAREEMNEE  BORn R EED & -

IR B MR BRI P E T 2 M —SNEBME N2 &
RENRE  AEEARFED26% K0 HRZFK
8 AEEFRRERNBFELREEHIIRIEAR
FREZERBRMERRE  ZREBRAEES L
mEBARSEET2H% 2RE - R T —RF
TZA=1t—HB AEEBES7T%(ZZ—HF : 33%)
WEin A BARRITE -
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. ARQTFZBHBMRRE
COMPANY
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MEE 35 -
Investment in a subsidiary REB AR ZIEE 2,508 21,772
2,543 21,772
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TR EIE 138 219
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B BB 12 B RB = 12,457
Amount due from a corporate shareholder JE UL — 2 N B IR FIE = 5
Bank and cash balances RITRBSEH 6,216 23,396
6,354 36,077
Current liabilities BB &
Other payables and accrued expenses i R RIE R FEET B A 123 169
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B A RIZRIE 11,033 9,523
11,156 9,692
Net current (liabilities)/assets HE (AE) BEFE (4,802) 26,385
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (Bf&) EBEFE (2,259) 48,157
Capital and reserves BARG#E
Share capital %N 1,046 1,046
Reserves ] (3,305) 47,111
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/TOTAL EQUITY (BB R (2,259) 48,157
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 HEZGgR_ZT—tF=-A -+ —AEREETR
March 2017. %o
Tang Wai Ting, Samson Mak Hing Keung, Thomas
BEE B EE
Director Director
EF EF
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31. RESERVES 31. f#E
(@) Group (@ *£E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein are AEENFEBERATOE LSS EE REM
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and FEPRKMEEEREHRANZT -
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) AT
Share Option  Contributed
premium reserve surplus  Accumulated
(note 31(c)i)) ~ (note 31(c)(v)) (note 31(c)(vi) losses Total
R EE BRERE BABH RitEE @t
(WaEsely)  (HEFsoy)  (WiEsiem)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FiET FER FET TER TER
At1 January 2015 R-E-7%5—F-H 38,747 317 20,764 8,579) 60,255
Loss and total comprehensive income  EREBRZEMA L5
for the year - - - (13,144) (13,144)
At 31 December 2015 and RE-REF+=
1 January 2016 kTR~ F— 38,747 317 29,764 21,717) 47,111
Release upon lapse of share option RIS RE & MK R - (317) = 317 -
Loss and total comprehensive FREER2AKALE
income for the year - - - (50,416) (50,416)
At 31 December 2016 ZE-xE+ZA=1-H 38,747 - 29,764 (71,816) (3,305)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and after deduction of capitalisation issue and issuance

costs of shares.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} &5 2016

(c) RENMERRE
(i) B9 %1
BEREFSQTE - AARRMEE
RZBELAHDIRTARBME - HE
FEEED KRS B EE - NARIARRE
NEEERBEEBBEETEIMZE
ﬁ% °

Bt Eig e SR RO EEZ B
FATRAD - WHIBRE AN 31T R A D 8
TR EE 2R E -
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31.

124

RESERVES (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(©

(i)

(i)

(i)

(v)

v

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate 10% of
its profit after tax as determined in accordance with the
relevant accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to PRC companies to the statutory reserve until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
appropriation to the reserve must be made before any
distribution of dividends to equity holders. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous years’
losses, if any, and part of the statutory surplus reserve can
be capitalised as paid-in capital provided that the amount
of such reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not
be less than 25% of the paid-in capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of
Central Pacific International Group Limited (“Central
Pacific International”) amounted to HK$10,300,000 and
HK$2,100,000 respectively at the date on which it was
acquired by Millennium Pacific International Group Limited
(“Millennium Pacific”), over the nominal value of 1,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 5(b)(iii) to the financial statements.

Option reserve

Option reserve represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 5(r) to the financial
statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represented the
excess of the consideration of Central Pacific International
at the date on which it was acquired by Millennium Pacific,
over the nominal value of 1,000 shares issued by the
Company pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

31. f#& (E)
(c) RBEMNMERRE (H)

(i)  EERE
RIBEFEDQRERANEEH R EAF
MRAFESEREA  ANEE RN B
ARERREHSHRERTEATE
FR & B 75 16 091 P 7 TE Y B 10% B 14
EREAT G EERFEEDER
BIHIB0% © [6)f#h s B IR R 0 B [
SREDIRE 2 BIEH AT BHRE
BRI RER R EEEMEE(E) -
B EAERBHEBIRRTERAEY
BAR  EBEFTERERSNZERES
ERSERAEERETRHBAREMY
JEAH) 25% ©

(i)  AUHEE

aftEEPERREEARAR ([H
E ] B & @ J) % Milennium Pacific
International Group Limited
(TMillennium Pacific]) [t iE & B %
7N TH & 10,300,000 7% 7T & B 10 % B
2,100,000/ 7T 7 Al AN R AR B AN S
Egt EmmET s EEH(EEER])E
71,000 P& AR 17 BB (B 2 F Y 258 ©

()  SMEHBERE
INE BB FEOERREIGINER I
R MAEERFTAINEER - REIRRE
B 75 5 2% B 2 5(0) i) A B B & 5T R R
I e

)  EREGEE
BERFEEERTARRREZRITE
Bz BARSMGHBE 2onE /
R B MR M T 60 AR A5 E LA
Befn AR MR 2 B BERRER

i)  BARE
RARMBABBIEPERREEE
Millennium Pacific Y % & H 89X B2 1A
AN BB 4R 55 B & 4 % 1T 1,000 B AR 15
WEER I -
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RNETZA=+T-RHIEFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 20 June 2014, written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company was passed to conditionally approve and adopt two share
option schemes namely, Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) and Share Option Scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) to recognise and motivate the contributions that eligible
participants have made or may make to the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme was valid and effective for a period commencing from
20 June 2014 to the date immediately prior to the Listing of the
Company (i.e. 17 July 2014), after which no further option to be
granted, but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 20 June 2014
will remain in force for a period of ten years from its effective date to 19
June 2024.

Particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme of the Company are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus dated 27 June 2014.

Pursuant to the resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed
on 20 June 2014, it was resolved to grant 2,000,000 share options to
an employee under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, to subscribe for
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$1.35 per option. The
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
exercisable for a period from the date immediately prior to the Listing of
the Company to 19 June 2016.

Apart from 2,000,000 share options were granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme on 20 June 2014, there is no share option was
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had 97,200,000 share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, 97,200,000 share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were lapsed following its expiry on
19 June 2016.
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CARE s AR E BB IR AR S
WZZE—MFARAZTE  AARRFBBERE
& BIRMHHLE IR MR EAEST 8] - A LM AT
Berestal ([ EmATAS IR AR &1 |) N B =t 8 ([ 58
RERTE]) ARG REEAER2EE LA
BUAKEFELZER - LTAIEEREAEE-F
—OERA-ZTEREEEAQFT LW —H(B1=
T-NEELA+ER) LHRBER LAY - HRHE
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BHREERR
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BRFEIAER AR 10FANFR > KR _F /N
FRNATABRER -

RATZ LA B R B Bl 2 FHBHR
AARBHMA-T—NFRA - +LAZBREREN
#5010

REARDRBRER ZZ—MFEXA -+ BBBRRE
EBABEBELEMAIEREFERN -—REERTY
2,000,000 7 BE AR 4E - ARRTT R B H HEARE1.35%8
TLRBBARABIRRD o IRIR T AT AR AT 815 L a0
BiEREEAAR EMAT—AREE_Z—<F<A
THBILHE FIT6E -

BN T —MFRHA T BRE M AT B
H#92,000,000 0 FERESN - REE T —RNF R
Z-RFT-A=ZT-RIEFE  MEREERES
B B AHE -

R-ZE—AF+-A=+—8  ANEER EHATER
58I T F 97,200,000 RITEERE - BE=T
—"F+ZA=+—BILFE - BEETATERES
E14% 1 #997,200,00017 FE R N =T —NFE XA
THRERER -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 32. URHHEBRSR(E)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) LR EEBREST S (8
As resulted by the completion of two share subdivisions of the ERARBDRTF = E—hF—A/\AR=_ZF—HF
Company on 8 January 2015 and 9 October 2015 as set out in notes + AN B TR 557 (2084 75 3R 3 M 5 29(a) &
29(a) and 29(b) to the financial statements respectively, and pursuant to 29b)Fr#) - BERBEIMN_-_ZEZRFNARAM
the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5 B ZE R T R BI85 23.03(13) 518 T~ Y B A% 4 7 28 3%
September 2005 with respect to the adjustment of share options under EHFFEIES] - NARIEABREME LM MARITER
Rule 23.03(13) of the GEM Listing Rules, the exercise price of the REAEEN TR B I B M AR TT R R AR M P B AR 1 4 28
outstanding share options granted by the Company and the total (BIFTA M ARITE B AR EEIT(E 18 AT T AR 3 R 31T
number of shares of the Company comprised in the outstanding share ) e
options which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options thereunder were adjusted.
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their RITEERES B M EENEEHTEE e
related weighted average exercise price as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—AHF
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
options price options price
InREFEI A
BRERE TfEE FER SR TEE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning REARITE
of the year 97,200,000 0.027 1,944,000 1.35
Lapsed during the year FERRR (97,200,000) 0.027 - -
Adjustment for share subdivision RN 4l 2 A
(note 29(a)) (K15t 29(a) - - 17,496,000 0.135
Adjustment for share subdivision A% An ¥ 40 2 S
(note 29(b)) (H1aE29(b)) - - 77,760,000 0.027
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ RAFRAITfE - - 97,200,000 0.027
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RAFRAJ1T{E - - 97,200,000 0.027

126

The fair value of the share options granted on 20 June 2014 determined
using the Black-Scholes valuation model was HK$327,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$1.22 as at the
grant date, exercise price of HK$1.35 per option, expected volatility of
23.2%, expected life of options of two years, expected zero dividend
paid-out rate and annual risk-free interest rate of 0.4% for exercise date
beginning on 18 July 2014. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis.

RZT-—OFENAZTAREZBREZ AR ERA
M — SFMATEEELETE - A327,00047T ©
ZEAEZH AR ANEL BHENRE225
TL TR EESMHERE1.358 T - BHIKIE23.2% -
BREZBANFFH BHTREXRREN =T
—ME+ A+ N\BRBZITEBHZ FEERBTIE
0.4% ° IZRRTEFH A BRI 2 IZEREFTETHE 2 I8 -
DIRERABFANETH -
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33.

RNETZA=+T-RHIEFE
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are

33. BT

ARAZHBAAR =T~

RNETZR=+—HZ

set out below: BERFINT -
Place of incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
£ BRI, L MR AR RA FEERZEIHL TEXBREEHH
Direct Indirect
i &
Millennium Pacific British Virgin Islands 1,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding,
11 September 2013 US$1 each Hong Kong
Milennium Pacific HRAREE 1000 B EE 1 R TTH0 RAER
“F-ZEART-H Lk B
Central Pacific International Hong Kong HK$12,400,000 - 100%  Trading of electronic devices,
14 January 2000 Hong Kong
HERKEE B 12,400,000 7T EFEEES
RZZRTE Bk
—A+HmA
Millennium Pacific Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Trading of electronic devices,
10 October 2014 Hong Kong
Millennium Pecific Trading Limited &k 10,000%7T EFEEES
“F-mE+ATA Bt
Millennium Pacific Solutions Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive, Hong Kong
10 October 2014
Millennium Pacific Trading Limited &b 10,000%7T LmEe - AR
“F-mE+ATA
Millennium Pacific Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Research, development and
21 April 2015 trading of electronic
devices, Hong Kong
Millennium Pacific Concept Limited B 10,000/87C EFRENRERES
—E-hf Bk
mA=+—AH
Millennium Pacific Data Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of data
Limited 21 April 2015 management services,
Hong Kong
ERATAEEERERAR EE 10,000 57T REBEERRE -
“E-RFMAZT-H Bk
ERATEES Y ERAT PRC Registered: - 100%  Trading of electronic devices,
Millennium Pacific Trading (Shenzhen) 21 May 2015 RMB1,000,000 PRC
Limited* (‘MPTSZ’) Paid-up:
RMB200,000
EBRTEES (R ERAR HE i - AK#1,000,0007 BYREZS  TH
(MERATFES RN “T-RFRAZT-B #R: AR2000007T
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33. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. MEAT (&)
Place of incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities and
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest place of operation
£ MBS, AR B ERNE e BEEERAMN FEERRCE MY
Direct Indirect
HE GiE
FERKET ORI BRAA PRC Registered and paid up - 100%  Inactive, PRC
Central Pacific Electronics (Shen Zhen) 12 May 2004 capital of HK$5,000,000
Limited" (‘CPE’)
FERKEFORINERAA 3 5,000,000 % 7T 2 71 g
([FERREF]) “TTMERA+TZA RARER
HENEFCEI)BERAT PRC Registered and paid up - 100%  Research, development and
CPIT 3 July 2007 capital of HK$10,000,000 manufacturing of electronic
devices, PRC
H 10,000,000/ 7.2 EFREOREREE -
—ZTtFLAZA RS RER HE
* English names are for identification purpose only HXEFECHT
Note: MPTSZ, CPE and CPIT are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established MiF - ERATEFES ORI RERKEFRPEMNE T
in the PRC. REFRBEKIHIIEBERE -
34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. mEBRERERMEE
CASH FLOWS
Disposals of subsidiaries HEME LT
During the year, the Group disposed of its entire interests in three REXR AEEKER=R2EMNBAR(BIREER
wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Millennium Pacific Information @ 5 F 4 4 & /I Millennium Pacific Information
Technology Limited (“MPIT”), Truvisio Limited (“Truvisio”) and Technology Limited ([MPIT]) + 18 &l ¥ & R 2 7
Millennium Pacific Information Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (ITruvisio ) RIE B K FFEER ORI BRAF
(“MPITSZ”) (collectively known as “Sale Companies”), which are (TMPITSZ] (A418 [HELQTE ) M2 HpRRAER T &
engaged in operation of internet trading platform, to an independent TEYE=F(EF])  KEAF/3,200,000% 7T
third party (the “Purchaser”) at an aggregated consideration of (THEsHE]D -
HK$3,200,000 (the “Disposals”).
Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement entered into between BEAEEEEFMIVEARAR T - "F+A
the Group and the Purchaser dated 30 December 2016, the Group has =+HHZEERS  AREDAKRERERERNLEE
conditionally agreed to sell the entire interests in the Sale Companies ARME R B HERARNHEEETKA
whereby all the amounts due by the Sale Companies to the Group at BT T ARSEH 2 EFIE - R ER4912,959,000
the date of completion of the Disposals, at an aggregated amount of BT BEAEERS c REFER T —XE+=
approximately HK$12,959,000 would be waived by the Group. The A=+H5%K °
Disposals were completed on 30 December 2016.
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. GEHESRERME(E)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

Disposals of subsidiaries (continued) HEME LR (&)
Net liabilities of the Sale Companies at the date of the Disposals were HEARRHEB SN EFENT :
as follows:
MPIT MPITSZ Truvisio Total
MPIT MPITSZ Truvisio st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T FHET FHET F#ET
Property, plant and equipment M - B RERE 899 - 11 910
Intangible assets B EE 38 - - 38
Other receivables Hth fE U FoE 1,278 - - 1,278
Bank and cash balances IRITMIRE 99 3 - 102
Amounts due to the Group FERT AN E B 7R IE (11,847) (1) (1,111) (12,959)
Other payables H b A ROE (49) ) (13) (65)
Net liabilities disposed of HEBEFE (9,582) (1) (1,113) (10,696)
HK$’000
F#&T
Net liabilities of the Sale Companies disposed of (per above) H & HEN TR EEFLE (0 F) (10,696)
Waiver of amounts due to the Group e N AREB B 12,959
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEH B A R 937
Total consideration, satisfied by cash WRE - ARSI 3,200
Net cash inflow arising on the Disposals: HESEEANBSRAFE
Cash consideration received BUWIESRE 3,200
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEBRENMREEEY (102)
3,098
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EBEXREE
As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any capital RZE—ARERZZE—AF+=-A=1+—8 " ~58
commitments. A AR B AN AEHE o
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36. LITIGATIONS

The following litigations and petition were brought against the Group

130

during the year:

U]

(ii)

High Court Action No. 977/2016

On 21 April 2016, Charles zZhi (“Plaintiff 1”) had filed a claim
against (i) the Company; (i) Kor Sing Mung, Michael, an executive
director of the Company (“Mr. Kor”); (i) Tang Wai Ting Samson,
an executive director of the Company (“Mr. Tang”) and (iv) World
Link CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company (“Auditor”) under
action number HCA 977/2016 (“Legal Proceeding 1”) in the
High Court of Hong Kong (“High Court”) alleging that (i) Mr. Kor
and Mr. Tang is subject to the mandatory general offer obligation
regarding their shareholdings in the Company; (i) Mr. Kor and
Mr. Tang were involved in various accounting irregularity
practices carried out by the Company and its subsidiaries; and (iii)
the Auditor conducted negligent accounting review for the
Company.

On 7 September 2016, a hearing took out in High Court by the
Company to strike out the Legal Proceeding 1. The Plaintiff 1 had
subsequently applied to the High Court to discontinue the Legal
Proceeding 1 against the Company whereby an order was
granted by the High Court to such effect. The High Court also
ordered the Plaintiff 1 to pay legal costs of proceedings to the
Company. The Company is therefore no longer a party in the
Legal Proceeding 1.

Winding up petition

On 14 July 2016, the Company announced that Plaintiff 1 had
filed a petition dated 11 July 2016 (“Petition”) in the Court of
First Instance of the High Court against the (i) Company; (i) Mr.
Kor; (i) Mr. Tang; (iv) Chan Kai Hei, spouse of Mr. Tang and a
shareholder with 1% shareholding interest of CPIT Investments
Limited (“CPIT Investments”), a then substantial shareholder of
the Company according to the Disclosure of Interest information
shown on the website of the Stock Exchange (“Mrs. Tang”); (v)
Yang Wu, a then substantial shareholder of the Company
according to the Disclosure of Interest information shown on the
(vi) Mak Jone, a
shareholder of the Company; (vi) Seize Minute Limited (“Seize

website of the Stock Exchange (“Mr. Yang”) ;

Minute”), a substantial shareholder of the Company and is
beneficially owned as to 100% by Mr. Kor; (viii) CPIT Investments;
(ix) Leung Wai Hing Ella, the then executive director of the
Company; and (x) Mak Hing Keung Thomas, an executive
director of the Company, alleging that (i) Central Pacific
International was injected into the Company prior to the Listing of
the Company based on overstated valuations; (i) the operations
of Central Pacific International were mostly dubious; and (iii)
certain shareholders of the Company were engaged in illegal
share pledge borrowing and acted in breach of the Code on
Takeovers and Mergers, which in the circumstances renders it
just, equitable and desirable to wind up the Company.

36.

0

(ii)

BN
NGRS SEE B

REFWT

977/2016 5% & & A B FF 74

RZZT—XFWMA=+—8 * Charles zhi ([ &
E1DAREBEERSER(ESZEEKR]) MK
A Al (i) Kor Sing Mung, Michael 5 4 + 7R A
BIBITES ([Kor & ) ¢ (i) BHEZE £ - A
REJRTER((BERE]) RV ELTRE(EE)
G EBAERAT - AR AHZEA ([%E
A )R IR 3R - BFFAAR SR A HCA 977/2016 5%
(FRAEFBR]) - RE 135 () Kor fe 4 R385
HAR AR E AR B 2 BRERR L 58l 2 E K
B2 EEAARR ¢ (i) Kor oA R A LA BBA
AR REWMBARETZETEHERT
A R i) 2B AR R AT S BB AT

¢=3
JiL /& ©

S|

C

RZFB—RNFNLALA  ARERMEEERF
R EERETRA - RE1ERMES
R BRI EARBZRRFR B
It BEERBESKILHFD - 2FER IS
CREIMARAZNFAERER - AR
AT B RAEFRI Z 28T -

BREE

RZB—RNFELA+TEA - AARAMRSE1
RBHAZZ—AFtA+—BESEFERR
FASE RES () AR QA (i) Kor At 4E ¢ (i) BB St A
(VR £ & - B0 £ & BB K % ACPIT
Investments Limited ([ CPIT Investments |)1%
Mt 2 IR - E1& BIRRI S FTARIL i BE i e
ERARARREZRE(BAD : VGR -
AR AR B 22 FTAS I 5 BR M o B R T R AR R & B
ZEERR(HBEED : (vi) ZEH - AQF
f% E i (vii) Seize Minute Limited ([ Seize
Minute]) - A ARIEZRE RHKor kA2 E
F A 2 A A (vii) CPIT Investments : (ix)
Z2EE ERNARNATNITESE RNEHR
M ARTMITERRIEH (2] - 58
() FERKEBDEBES KMEERARE LW
BDEARRA] ;5 (i) PERIRA I D X755 B
ATEE ;R (ii) AN RE TR 2 EIBERND E
HEBERERARWERE TR - #UEARR
AIERBAT - BT REBME -
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36. LITIGATIONS (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Winding up petition (continued)

Pursuant to the Petition, the Plaintiff 1 had sought for (i) an order
that the Company be wound up by the High Court under the
provisions of the Companies (Winding-Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (the “Winding Up Order Sought”); and (i)
such other orders and costs may be made in the premises as
shall be just.

On 29 September 2016, the High Court ordered that the Petition
being sought by Plaintiff 1 to wind up the Company be struck out
and the whole proceedings be transferred from the Companies
Winding Up List to the Miscellaneous Proceedings List.

Up to the approval date on these financial statements, no further
claims in relation to the Petition had been filed by Plaintiff 1 to the
High Court. Having considered the legal advice from the
Company’s legal counsel, the directors believe that the Company
has a meritorious defence against the Petition. Accordingly, the
directors do not believe that the Petition will have any material
adverse impact on the Company and accordingly no provisions
have been made in respect thereof.

High Court Action No. 1935/2016

On 27 July 2016, Kim, Sungho (“Plaintiff 2”) had filed a claim
against (i) CPIT Investments; (i) Mr. Tang; (i) Mrs. Tang; (iv) Mr.
Kor; (v) Mr. Yang; and (vi) the Company under action number
HCA 1935/2016 (“Legal Proceeding 2”) in the High Court
alleging that the dealings in the shares of the Company by CPIT
Investments, acting upon instructions by Mr. Tang and Mrs.
Tang, were ultra virus and illegal and hence void ab initio, such
dealings include (a) the initial acquisition of the shares of the
Company by CPIT Investments in 2013, prior to the Listing, was
made through the use of falsified accounts; (b) the dealings of
CPIT Investments, Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang with Mr. Yang, prior
to the Listing, in which CPIT Investments, Mr. Tang and Mrs.
Tang assisted Mr. Yang to wrongfully obtain the shares of the
Company without consideration; and (c) the sale of shares of the
Company from CPIT Investments to Mr. Kor was done without
consideration and with ulterior motive to evade certain rules
under Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, the Laws
of Hong Kong).

The Plaintiff 2 had requested the High Court to grant an order to
rescind the aforesaid dealings, forfeit the relevant shares and
rescind any share pledge arrangement. Further, the Plaintiff 2
claimed that CPIT Investments, Mr. Tang, Mrs. Tang, Mr. Kor
and Mr. Yang have committed offences under section 25(1) of
the Organised and Serious Crime Ordinance (Chapter 455, the
Laws of Hong Kong).
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36. LITIGATIONS (continued)

132

(iii)

(iv)

High Court Action No. 1935/2016 (continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the directors have
considered the legal advice from the Company’s legal counsel
and are of the opinion that the Company has merits in the
defence against the Legal Proceeding 2. Accordingly, the
directors consider that no provision is necessary for the Legal
Proceeding 2.

On 18 January 2017, the Company has obtained an order from
the High Court to dismiss the Legal Proceeding 2 with costs of
the proceedings to be paid by the Plaintiff 2. The Company is
therefore no longer a party in the Legal Proceeding 2.

High Court Action No. 2041/2016

On 12 August 2016, Lim Hang Young (the “Plaintiff 3”) had filed
a claim against (i) the Auditor; (i) Mr. Tang; (i) Mr. Chan Kwon
Chi Vicky, a director of CPIT Investments (“Mr. Chan”); (iv) CPIT
Investments; and (v) the Company under action number HCA
2041/2016 (“Legal Proceeding 3”) in the High Court alleging
that (i) the Auditor wilfully engaged in auditing and reporting
irregularities in relation to audit reports for the Company and
possible non-compliance with accounting requirements; (i) Mr.
Tang masterminded and directed the recording of various
accounting irregularity and non-compliance practices to the
Auditor; and (i) Mr. Tang and Mr. Chan engaged in money
laundering practices while dealing in the shares of the Company
for the benefit of CPIT Investments.

The Plaintiff 3 had requested the High Court to grant an order for
the Auditor to (i) restate the 2014 and 2015 audit reports of the
Company and to disclose its knowledge and its role on the
alleged offences committed by Mr. Tang and CPIT Investments
under section 25(1) of the Organised and Serious Crime
Ordinance; and (ii) to pay compensation to the Company for
damages.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors have
considered the legal advice from the Company’s legal counsel
and are of the opinion that the Company has merits in the
defence against the Legal Proceeding 3. Accordingly, the
directors consider that no provision is necessary for the Legal
Proceeding 3.

On 18 January 2017, the Company has obtained an order from
the High Court to dismiss the Legal Proceeding 3 with costs of
the proceedings to be paid by the Plaintiff 3. The Company is
therefore no longer a party in the Legal Proceeding 3.

36.
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of reporting period
(2015: Nil).

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than those balances of related party disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group had the following material transactions
with its related parties during the year.

Guarantee

Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang had guaranteed the banking facilities and bank
loans obtained by certain subsidiaries within the Group to the extent of
HK$58,791,000 and HK$3,791,000 respectively, such banking facilities
were terminated during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
aforementioned guarantee given by Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules but fully exempted pursuant to Rules 20.88 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the Company has fulfilled the relevant requirements.

Key Management Compensation

Other than those disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, there
is no remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Company
during the year (2015: Nil).

39. LEASE COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

37.

38.

39.

HAREE
REEHHREAMBHHES - ARERREHR
PEAEARALE(—T—HF &) -

BBLRS
ik B 755 S R EL A S 4R R ) R U A RSN
FREREB B TIEARS °

REER

ER

BE_Z-AF+-_A=+—BLFE HELEERY
ARERANEE R E T E A B &R S 5 458,791,000
P 12 3,791,000 T (IR TREE I IRTT E RUR HEE
R MARBRTRESRIE -

AABEERS AT E R RREHOERE
REIZEIR EMRBE0EMACHNHEBERS
HEIRIBAIZEIR E TR RIZE20.88 RS E R - B A
AABDHFABRERE

TEEEENS
BB SmAM 14 REEN  FARERARRT
TEREEABRINME (T —1F  E) -

HEARE
RoB—XE+ZA=+—0  RETTEHSEER
B AR ERBRENT

2016 2015

—E—REF —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —F R 4,057 2,948
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZFNF(BEEEMT) 366 2,397
4,423 5,345

During the year, operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its offices, factory premises and staff quarters.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, leases are negotiated for an
average term of 3 years (2015: 5 years) and rentals are fixed over the
lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & $} &5 2016

RER - EEBEFTIREARERE THER - THK
BEMEIEEENNES BE-_T—XRF+-A
=t RLEFE  BERDHEAAFHEYF(Z
T-RF 5F) RIEANBREESRITBERA
ik Al

133



Notes to the Financial Statements

P IE AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—_T—

RNETZA=T-HIEFE

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

134

(@

(b)

(©

Possible acquisition

On 3 February 2017, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (“MOU”) with a target company which was
established in the PRC with limited liability and is principally
engaged in research, development, design, manufacture and
sales of weak alkaline waste-free water purification machine
(“Target Company”) pursuant to which the Company intends to
acquire an interest in the Target Company (“Possible
Acquisition’). The signing of a formal agreement in respect of
the Possible Acquisition is subject to the fulfilment of the due
diligence works to be conducted on the Target Company by the
Company during the period commencing from 3 February 2017
to 2 August 2017. Details of the above are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 February 2017.

Proposed placement of Bonds

On 20 March 2017, the Company announced that the Company
had entered into the Placing Agreement with the Placing Agent
on 16 March 2017, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
appoint and the Placing Agent agreed to act as the placing agent
for the purposes of arranging, on a best efforts basis, any
independent professionals, institutional or private investor(s)
procured by the Placing Agent to subscribe for the Bonds
pursuant to the Placing Agreement during the period from the
date of the Placing Agreement and end on the date falling 30
days from the date the Placing Agreement, at the issue price of
100% of the principal amount of the Bonds (the “Proposed
Placing”).

The completion of the Proposed Placing is subject to the
fulfilment of the conditions set out in the Placing Agreement. As
of the approval date on these financial statements, the Proposed
Placing is under progress and not yet completed.

Details are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20
March 2017.

Litigation

On 13 February 2017, the Plaintiff 1, Plaintiff 2, Plaintiff 3, Kim
Kyungsoo and Joung Jong Hyun (collectively referred to as the
“Plaintiffs”) had file a claim against (i) the Company; (i) Mr. Kor;
(iiiy Mr. Tang; (iv) Mrs. Tang; (v) Mr. Yang; and (vi) CPIT
Investments under action number HCMP 326/2017 (“Legal
Proceeding 4”) in the High Court.

40.
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(©

Litigation (continued)

The Plaintiffs had requested the High Court to grant an order to
the above defendants for submission of the following
documentations to the examination of the Stock Exchange;
Securities and Futures Commission; and the Financial Reporting
Council: (a) all ledger accounts of CPIT Investments; (b) all related
documents of the sale and purchase of 200,000,000 shares of
the Company between Mr. Yang and CPIT Investments; (c)
identity documents of Mr. Yang; (d) all related documents of the
pledge of the Company’s shares by CPIT Investments to obtain
financing since November 2015; and (e) the nominee agreement
between Mr. Kor and Mr. Tang, if any.

The directors of the Company are currently in the process of
assessing of what impact of the Legal Proceeding 4 on the
Group and not yet concluded up to the approval date on these
financial statements.

41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 21 March 2017.
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Five Year Financial Summary

FFEMBRE

Year ended/As at 31 December

BE+-A=+—-RLEE R+=-A=+—H

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE —T—hF —T-NF —T-=F —T—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET AR FHET FHET FHET
OPERATING RESULT KR
Turnover HE% 51,727 67,098 237,226 348,321 259,081
Cost of sales HeERA (46,125) (61,054  (210,511) (308,843  (225,679)
Gross profit ER 5,602 6,044 26,715 39,478 33,402
Other income HAn g A 2,701 1,048 342 272 272
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEKEA RS 937 - - - -
Selling and distribution costs HE RO HEKK (1,957) (3,321) (2,967) (4,615) (5,297)
Administrative expenses THRAX (51,366) (20,890) (23,422) (19,765) (13,304)
(Loss)/profit from operation &IE (F1])wA (44,083) (17,083) 668 15,370 15,073
Finance costs B8 A (10) (424) (1,085) (1,754) (1,058)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLAT (E18), %R (44,093) (17,607) (397) 13,616 14,015
Income tax expense FeHAL (1) (19) (1,216) (3,336) (2,946)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),HF (44,094) (17,526) (1,613) 10,280 11,069
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEBRA
for the year after tax: HIBRBiE -
ltems that may be reclassified to profit AREEF AR ERHN
or loss: ER :
Exchange differences on translating HEFINETEREH
foreign operations N ZE%E 2,012 548 8 (311) 31
Fair value changes of available-for-sale AREESREE
financial asset NEEZE) - - - - 362
Release of investment revaluation reserve  RAHE R HE S A
to profit or loss upon disposal of BEEBBREER
available-for-sale financial asset R AER = - - - (27)
Other comprehensive income for the year, & RE 2 EUA -
net of tax HBRE 18 2,012 548 8 (311) 366
Total comprehensive income for the  AATHEE AELEER
year attributable to the owners ZHERALEE
of the Company (42,082)  (16,978) (1,605) 9,969 11,435
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERE 20,743 72,265 102,364 85,495 93,868
Total liabilities & EeE (14,612)  (24,052) (37,173) (58,809) (79,351)
Net assets EESE 6,131 48,213 65,191 26,686 14,317
Equity attributable to owners KAREE AEEERS
of the Company 6,131 48,213 65,191 26,686 14,317
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